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ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY

IN CALIFORNIA AND ARIZONA

PREPARED BY:

UNITED FARM WORKERS OF AMERICA, AFL-CIO
BOX 62
KEENE, CALIFORNIA 93531




FRESNO COUNTY ILLEGAL ALIEN DOCUMENTATION - STATISTICAL ANALYSIS

Commencing on June 10, 1974 the legal staff of the United Farm Workers' Selma
Field Office began submitting reports to the United States Border Patrol as to
both residences and work locations of illegal aliens being used to harvest crops
on Fresno County farms. During our first telephone conversations with the
Border Patrol, Lewis Bartlett, Officer in Charge of the Fresno office, informed
us that top priority would be given to the United Farm Workers' reports, As of
September 23, 1974, of the 2641 illegal aliens reported by the Selma Field Office,
195 of them have been arrested and deported, representing a mere 7.4% rate of
success.

In telephone conversations with Officer Bartlett he related that 48 of the
77 locations reported had been at least visited, but explained that a major
reason for failure to make apprehensions was the delay in being able to investi-
gate the reports. The average time between reports being filed hy the United
Farm Workers and the locations being checked was over one month. That one month
delay gave the growers ample opportunity to break United Farm Workers' strikes
against their ranches through the use of illegal aliens. Of the 21 locations
which provided no apprehensions, Officer Bartlett admitted that 12 had been
abandoned by the illegals by the time the patrol arrived because the harvest had
ended,

Despite repeated requests, no effort was made to arrest the aliens in the
fields where they worked, and little if any effort was made to illicit the
support of other law enforcement agencies such as the Fresno County Sheriffs
Department, even though the magnitude uf.the problem was admitted. During a
television interview, Officer Bartlett estimated there to be 30,000 illegal

aliens living in Fresno County alone.
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I, Aurora Cortez, do hereby declare:

I went to Delfino Arediga's house at 16433 Goodfellow on 9
June 1974 because he owed my husband and I some money. Ile 1ls a
crew boss for Superlor Farming Company, main office 2322 5. Peach.
We worked on the corner of Cedar and Nebraska in Seima thinning
peaches.

We were short one day's pay so he told us to come to his
house to get the money.

e started talking about the fact that he didn't have enough
money to pay us, and in the conversation he started telliné us
how much money he had spent in taking fruit to the Border tratrol.

He said that the Border ratrol did not want to go the ranches or

stop traffic to take illemals, but Chavez was putting a lot of
pressure on them, and if they dldn't get anyone, they would be in

trouble,

e said he had a lot of friends in the immigration offlce.
They would let him know ahead of time where the Border Fatrols
were going to be and when., This way they could go around them.
Also they were told to go very early like 3 or even 2 A.l. so by
the time the Border Patrol were out blocking the road they would
be out of the way.

Delfino said they had one person in the Border Fatrol that wa
not cooperating with them, he was kind of a new menber and
Mexlcan-American.

T'ne Border Patrol knows Wwhich ranches belong to whom and are
structed not to stop at Superlior's ranches,

He mentioned one incident that happened iast year with the

Border Patrol. The Border Patrol plecked up two bus loads of
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11lerals. "hey were renorted by Chavez' memhers. They drove the
twe bnses full of illersls to Clovis. TlThere they let them out
and told them to go. The Rorder ratrol reported that the bus.
drivers had stewed out of the huses and when they came back the
lllesals had cscarped.

T declare under cenalty of verjury that the forepoling is true|

arnd correcth,.
Execubed on fg(? June 1874 at -~-;¢;‘_L_Z}f.?z’ Qg , California.
,{f) ﬁ:’
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Anrnra Cortez




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY

Barr Packing Company Grower - Shipper

7th & L Streets grapas, plums, peaches, nectarines,
Sanger, Californis pomegranates, persimmons, onions, peppers
Number of illegale: 14

Working at: Barr Packing Crmpany

Foreman: Pedro Ramirez

Living at: 3089 South Del Rey

Sanger, California

Property Owner: Barr Packing Company
Transportation: Pedro Ramirez
Comments: This particular grcop of illegals came across the border

at Tijuana. They pay $10,00 a week for rent to Barr. There
is no bedding provided. Transportation to the fields cost
$1.00 a day. According to the illegals, they were moved

to this location by Pedro Ramirez because the border patrel
would not bother them there.

Information provided by: Maria Diaz
1260 North Hemlock
Readley, California

This informstion was turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol office on

June 6, 1974 to the officer in charge, Mr. Bartlett.

History of border patrol response:

6~27-74 Steve Johnson of the Selma United Farm Worker Field Office called
Officer Bartlett and asked vhat had been done with the above infor-
mation. DBartlett said they had not gottem to it yet.

7=22-74 Bartlett aaid they had gen= to the house but did not make any arrests.

9-5-74 Bartlett said they had received other confirming information on the
Del Ray address. Said they had arrested some illegals nearby but

had not picked up anyone Ffrom the house.

9-10-74 Bartlett said they had not done anything since we last called because
of the long weekend (labor day).



Number of illegals: 20
Working at: Barr Packing Company

Living at: 4123 Bethel
Del Ray, California

Property Ownear: Ed Scheidt -~ the director of Barr Packing Company

This information was turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol office on
June 26, 1974. Officer in charge Bartlett said they would check it out.

History of Border Patrol response:
6-27-74 Bartlett said had not gotten around to it yet.

7-22-74 Border patrol agent checked it out but the illegals were not there.
Bartlett said the man who was there was very hard to get along with.

9-5-74 Bartlett said again that they had checked it out on July 3 but
"but apparently someone knew we were coming."

9-10-74 Bartlett said they had not done anything since the UFW last called
because of labor day weekend.

Number of illegals: 45

Working at: Barr Packing Company
Living at: 4731 Bethel
Del Rey, California
Property Owner: A. Vasquez
Transportation: Provided by A. Vasquez
Comments: Vasquez is housing these illegals in five chicken coops

located behind his house. For more information, see
declaration on following page.

This information was turnad over to the Fresno County Border Patrol on June 26,
1974. Officer in charge Bartlett said they would check it out.

History of border patrol response:

6-27-74 Bartlett said they had not gotten around to it yet.

7-22-74 Bartlett said they had arrested four illegals who lived at the above
address but that the arrests ‘took place at a different location.
Said the border patrol still had not checked the Vasquez place.

9=5-74 dartlett said no action had been taken since the UFW last called.

9-10-74 No action taken since the UFW last called.
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I, Jesse Lopez, residing at 4672 S, Bethel Ave., Del Rey, @&
nereébye declare:

That on July 3, 1974 at about 7:30 A.M. I was at my house at
€72 3, Zethel, as I looked out my window, I saw a Border Patrol
ven pull up st my neighvors® house across the street at L7731 S,
wethel, "he van drove in the driveway very slowly; as it came to
a8 7"0op, apou* 1% illegals who live there with Antonie vasquez ran
away and jumped the fence at the back of the yard. The Border
tatral erante didn'i ger oul o1 their vangj;they just sat there
until finally, after about three minutes a womplan came out of the
kouge, A+ *:ic time ore of ithe mern got out of the car and epAke
*e her, After a 2'ouh time the Border Fatrol leit without even
tryine to cateh the illegals. They drove south on Bethel, but in

a few minutaes returred drivine very slowly., This time They got out

a7

ard looked arocund in the archard next *o Vazquez's lLiouse., Shey still

idn't catch any illegals, because all the illepals had run the

first *tim2. I should point nur *hat the five* time whes *they arrive
ke illegale started ummine =t 2 distance of albout 20 fest from
the van, and in my judesemert they counld nunt ravs zveided moeeing
ihe L1legale run., T4 i ro wonder that +the illegals in whis arsa
ares not afraild to stay here ar® take our jobs, wheraver tre Lorder

Patrol comes, they don'*t o their dob.

3

&m mave complnlses ‘eovor ahout these ilisgals, because the
eonditions in our relsniborbecd! are retwiag to se wunbearable, There
arg no toilet facilities for *hem. Sometimes they they juet urinate
WM othe wird within pLialn velw of my wite and children. uther times
“hey use a hole they Jug to ge to the bathroom. Je can smell the

&

stink of that hole in the evenings sometimes. Also they go out in

dy
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the fields and orchards. The neighborhood dogs eat the fecee and
sometimes when my wife and T are not looking, ocur children touch
the dogs which smell 211 the time. Cur neighbors next door also
complain about the conditions that these jllegals live in and
create for us, T have also heard my neleghbor across the street who
ovma the orcnard express his ¢isgust over the situation,

"hese i1llegels have no respect for our rights; cne Sunday,
when we were gettinz into the car to g0 to church, cne of the
illegals spun through our driveway very fast; his car kicked up a
whole lot of dust, and he could have hit one of my children. After
this he went to hig driveway; when we zot mad st him, he juét
lzughed at us. This was nothing newy I had gone to their house
many times to complain about them driving on our nroperiy.

At night these peorle resularly make ncise. Sometimes they
vzKe s up in the middle of +he night wi+h thalr yelling and shout
ing. In the evenings they target practice wi+th hand suns., Last

ni.zht some reporters came to whotoprach *the condi+iona thereg and

g few minutes after thev drove sway, T distinctly heard three shotF

coming from their vproperty. These shot= were directed *owards the

orchard where the rerorters had heen & Tew minutes before,

3

Onee T spoke with one of the illegais. He told me that he pay
Vasquez 340 a week to gtay there, He alsn pay= 32 for & ride to th
store, but he has *o wait for Antonic *o zet & carload to go.He pa

s

Antonio for a ride to work, and for weesr, ¥e zaid Tony won't let h
buy his own beer.

He tnld me *that when Vasquez brought him frem iexicoz, he char
ed him $400 for <ranspvortation. Between thdwoney that tri.: coyote

gete for tansporting and housing these illegals, he mus’ be geihiy

]
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very rich, I never see him working excep*t when he takes the ille=-
gals to work in the meorning and brings them home at night. I
suppose hig wife cooke for them too, but for the amount of money

it takes tc feed them, he must keep most of the monev for himself.

I wonder what this country is coming to wher the henl*h depark-

ment, the sherifi's department, and the Border Fatranl can not do
anything about the pregence of these peonle,
T declare under penalty of perjury that the foregcing is *rue

and correct,

Executed at Da_,( Ec’-_.rl ,» California, on the

sdaly o 107k

ff‘ﬂ._ day. of




Number of illegals: 66
Working at: Barr Packing Company

Living at: 7378 South Zediker
Parlier, California

Property Owner: Barr Packing Company
Transportation: Foreman from Barr
Information provided by: Juan Salazar

L3394 West Cypress
Parlier, California

This information was turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol office on
June 26, 1974, Officer in charge Bartlett said they would check it out.

History of border patrol response:

6=27=74 Steve Johnson of the Selma Field Office talked with Officer in
charge Bartlett. Bartlett said they had not gotten around to it yet.

7-22-74 Bartlett said they had not gotten around to it yet.

9-5~74 Bartlett said they had finally checked it out on August 28, 1974.
It was too late - the illeg#ls had already left.

9-10-74 Bartlett said they had not done anything about the South Zediker
place since the United Farm Workers last called because of laber
day weekend.

Number of illegals: 6
Working at: Barr Packing Company
Living at: McCall Street between Jensen and California

Sanger, California

Property Owner: Barr Packing Company
Transportation: A Barr foreman
Information provided by: George Verdugo

2008 East Front Street
Parlier, California

The above information was provided to the Fresno County Border Patrol office
on June 26, 1974. Officer in charge Bartlett said they would check it out.

Four follow-up telephone calls were made by Union staff members to the border
patrol office. By 9-10-74, no action had been taken.



Number of illegals: 85
Working at: Barr Packing Company

Living at: 14258 South Avenue
Parlier, California

Property Owner: Barr Packing Company

Transportation: Provided by crew bosses from Barr

This information was provided by Ceorge Verdugo.

This information was turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol on June

26, 1974, Officer Bartlett said the address was unclear and they could take no
action.

6-27-74 Bartlett said the address was unclear.
7=22-74 Bartlett said the address was correct and they would check it out.
9-5-74 Bartlett said they had conducted a raid there but only caught six

illegals. The patrol had not been back since.

9-10-74 Bartlett said they had not done anything since the UFW last called
because of labor dav weekend.

Number of illegals: 30
Working at: Barr Packing Company
Living at: 14021 Adams = (See photograph on following page)

Parlier, California

Transportation: Provided by Alejandre Novela and lsbor contractor
Pedro Ramirez

Comments: See declaratcion on following page.

This information was turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol on June 26,
1874. Officer Bartlett said they would check it out.

History of border patrol response:

6-27-74 Bartlett said thevy had not gotten around to checking the Adams house
out yet,

7-22-74 Bartlett said they raided the place on July 1, 1974 and arrested three.
He also said at least thirty got away through the vineyvards.

9-5-74 Bartlett said they had received other information on the Adams house
but had not gone out there again.



Photo by Mimi Plumb

This is the residence at 14031 East Adams in Parlier, California listed on

the preceeding page. The thirty illegals living here work for Barr Packing
Company. They have been imported to break the United Farm Workers' strike
against the Barr Company. The following is a declaration from community
health worker Maria Diaz, who visited the Adams place on the 6th of June, 1974.

I, Maria Diaz, residing at 1260 N. Hemlock Ave., Reedley, California,
do hereby declare:

That on July 6, 1974 myself and Helen Perry went to 14031 East Adams,
Parlier, where reported illegal workers for Barr Company were staying. The
place was a garage in bad condition with water puddles around the outside.
Inside there were no facilities to wash, four bed frames--no mattresses,
blankets or bathroom (they told us they bathe in the canal.) A toilet was
outside for 20 people. The space inside was not big enough for 20 people and
we saw some mattresses outside under trees. There was one regular-sized stove
and one refrigerator inside the garage. Under the trees where they slept, there
were dirty water puddles from water that had run from the faucet where they
wash their dishes. The trees were located close to the fields and during the
evening alot of flies are buzzing around the trees. Pots that they use for
cooking were lying around in the kitchen part of the garage -- all of them
rusty, There were flies buzzing around food that was left out. This garage
was located in the back of a house. There were boxes and tractors clearly
marked "BARR" all around the yard. Also there were boxes with the name "Pedro
Ramirez" piled right outside the garage. Pictures were taken of all of this.

We talked with a group of 20 men who readily admitted that they were here
without papers. They said that they've come from different parts of Mexico.
We noted that these people are living in completely unhealthy conditionms,



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON ILLEGAL ALIENS AT BARR PACKING COMPANY

1.

A total of 300 illegal aliems living at 3089 S. Del Rey, Sanger, California.
Transportation to the fields ie provided by Barr foreman Tony Vasques,

Most of the illegals here sleep under the grape vinss in the fields ne:st

to the camps.

This information wao turned over to the Fresno County Border Patrol of fice
on June 26, 1974. Four follow-up phone calls were made to the patroi
during the next three months. Out of 300 illegals, the border patro!
arrested four on the 17 of July,

A total of 100 illegal alievs living at 3433 Thompson !itreet on prop~rty
owned by Manuel Camarillo. Camarillo takes them to Barr Packing Com .any

on Barr's request for additiomal labor.

This information was reported te the Fresno County Borcer Patrol office a
total of five times during a four month time period (June 26 - September 10).
During that tine, the border patrol apprehended only six illegal aliens

on the Thompson Street property.

A total of ten illezal aliens living at 8602 Amigo Strect, Parlier, Cal.

A man by the name of F. Prunéda ownes the property the illegals are living
on. The illegals are picked up every morning at 4:30 by vans owned by
Barr Packing Company.

This information was reported to the border patrol on June 26, 1974,

No action had been taken by the patrol as of July 22, 1974,

A total of 30 illegals living at 10923 Fast North & Del Rey Streets in
Sanger, California. Property is owned by Barr,

This information was given to the Fresno Border Patrol office on June 26,
1974. The border patrol, according to officer in charge Bartle:t, visited
Amigo Street on the 26th of August - almost two months after the original
report was given to them. Bartlett said all the illegals had left by the
time they arrived as the harvest was over.

A total of fifty illegals living at the Barr Labor Camp located on the
corner of Newmark and South Avenues in Parlier, California.
This information was turned in to the border patrol on August 19, 1974.



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - FRESNO AND TULARE COUNTIES

ITO PACKING COMPANY, INC.
Reed and South Avenues
Reedley, California

and
18697 Last South Avenue
Parlier, California

Grower - Shipper
grapes, plums, nectarines

The following groups of illegal aliens ave employed by Ito Packing Company

Number of illegals Living At Border Patrel Action

12

605 Stanislaus St.
Parlier, Cal.

Reported to BP
of September.

as of the 23rdl

on the 19th
No action taken
of September

45 Parlier Lazbor Camp Reported to BP on the 19th of
1370 Parliexr Ave. September., No action taken as
Parlier, Cal. of the 23rd of September.
20 838 E. Early Ave, Reported to BP July 17th -
Keedley, Cal. As of September 10, four of
Property owned by these twenty illegals had been
Reyes Rodriguez arrested
8 Corner of 7th & L St. Reported to Border Iatrol on
Sanger, California July 17th, 1974. No action
Property owned by taken as of September 10, 1974,
Juan Nagera
25 10148 Pederson Reported to BP om July 17. No
Parlier, Cal. arrests made as of September 10,
Property owned by
T. Takanshi
19 111 De Wolf Reported to BP on July 17, 1974.
Sanger, California Border Patrol finally checked
Property owned by rasidence on Augusat 31, 1974,
Jesus Espinoza Officer Bartlett reported that by
the time they got there the work
was all finished and the illegals
had left.
20 551 E. Dinuba

Reedley, Cal,

Reported to the BP on June 26, 1974,
forder Patrel finally checked, the
residence on August 28 - reportadl
that they got there too late - the
work was over and the illegals had
moved an.



REPORT

ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - FRESNO AND TULARE COUNTIES

Report continued on use of illegals by ITO PACKING COMPANY and action taken
by the Border Patrol.
Number of illegals Living At Border Patrol Action

74 1337 12th & N S5t. Reported to the Porder Patrol on
Sanger, California June 26, 1974. Patrol finally checked
Property owned by the residence on August 30, 1974, Officer
Lupe Alvarado. Bartlett said the information as reported

by the United Farm Workers was corract
but that the patrol arrived too late -
the workers had finished the harvest and
moved on.

30 1411 J Street Reported to the Border Patrol on June
Readley, Cal. 26, 1974. On July 22, the Border Parrol
Transportation to arrested 17 of the thirty. The rest
the fields is got away.
provided by Manuel
Gonzalez in a brown
Chevy Pick-up.

License plate =~
055976

6 10587 Porter Reported to the Border Patrol on June 26,
Parlier, Cal. BP finally checked the residence on
Property owned hy August 28 - reported that the workers
ITO PACKING CO. finished the harvest and moved on. No
Informant George arrests made,
Verdugo reported
that they are living
in the companies®
houses so that the
Border Patrol will
not find them.

50 Tinoeo's Labor Camp Reported to the Border Patrol on June 10th.
706 Tulare Street No action had been taken as of June 26,
Parlier, Cal. On July 1, 1974, the BP made nine arrests.
Froperty owner - Said they would go back for the rest. They
JIM ITO had not done so as of September 10, 1974.
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DECLARATION OF WILLIE ZAVALA
RE: 1ITO PACKING COMPANY

I, WILLIE ZAVALA, residing at 321 Morton Street, Sanger, California,
declare:

I worked on a crew for ITO PACKING COMPANY this vear until T injured
my leg during the second week of July, 1974, There were twenty-two
workers on our crew, which was led by our crew hoss, Jesus. Jesus is a
short, heavy-set man and he has cne sick eye. He drives a late-model
blue pick-up with a white camper. He works only for ITO.

One day while we were working, an lto foreman, a skinny .Japanese guy
who I could identify came to where we were working. There were nine ille-
gals on our crew that I know of. On this day the foreman was talking to the
illegals. He said in Spanish, "The Immigration has a bus in Reedley loaded
full of illegals."

Another Tto field man who was there also then said teo one of the illegals
"But don't worry about it, Ramiro, if you get arrested, you'll be back

here in eight days." The person who said this is Tom Sacata.

Ramiro replied to Tom that he couldn't afford to be picked up because
it would cest him between $300 and $400 to return. It was common know-
ledge among the crew and the bosses that many of Ito's workers were here
without papers.

Once when our crew was working on Perter Avenue in one of Ito's plum
orchards, Ramirc had a gun with him. Two or three of the illegals used
his gun for target practice at a nearby Emperor vineyard during the lunch
break.

I have seen Jesus, the crew boss, drop the illegals on that crew off at

the "Pub" on the corner of N and 12th Streets in Sanger. There are some

very small huts in back of that bar.

Once after I started working for Ito Packing, cone of the foremen brought

|
i
’
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a paper around for me to sign. He told me that the paper would fix it
so that the windows in my truck wouldn't get broken. He didn't know I
could read it, but I could, and the paper really said that there was a
labor dispute between Ito Packing Co. and the United Farm Workers of
America. It said that I agreed to work under those conditioms.

On June 30, the day theré wae an article in the Fresno paper about

illegals, my neighbor , who works for Ito Packing Co.,
] _‘,1

said that the word had been %ﬁtEELt by Jim Ito on that Friday night
(June 28, 1974) that all the illegals should stay home from work the
next day. He said, according to my neighbor, that the workers would be
checked very carefully that Saturday.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and

correct.
Executed at fﬂ,igthgpw » California on the f’f’ﬁth day of July,
7
1974,

o R oo Pﬁ‘m. o
R Lt P -:.--"L"'ZL—‘“K’"/':?’""’
i WILLTE ZAVALA




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - FRESNO AND TULARE COUNTIES - CALIFORNIA

BALLATINE PRODUCE COMPANY, INC, Grower - Shipper - Distributor
320 M Street Specialize in table grapes, juice
Sanger, California grapes, peaches, plums, and

Owner /Manager - Mr. Rasmussen nectarines

Number of illegals: 60
Working at: Ballantine Produce Company -~ in a field located at 11467 East
Shields, Sanger, California

Foreman: Beto Cantu and Juan Zuniga
Living at: 1130 Jensen (a hotel)
Sanger, California
Property Owner: Jose Sanchez - he ownes the Jose Sanchez Farming Services
Transportation: Transportation to the fields is provided by Jose Sanchez. He

also provides these illepals with food. Foremen Beto Cantu
and Juan Zuniga also provide transportation.

Comments: Jose Lopez of Sanger used to live in the 1130 JYensen house. He
was a legal resident who was working for Ballantine. He was
fired and replaced bv these illegals - see declaration of the
following page.

This information was turned over to the Fresno County Porder Patrol in the 18th of
June, 1974. Officer in charge Bartlett said they would get to it when theyv could.

History of follow-up phone calls to the Fresno Border Patrol office:
6-20-74 Bartlett said they had not had the time to do anything about it.

6-26-74 Bartlett said they made 24 arrests at the Jensen place on the 26th of
June - but that everyone else managed to get away.

7-22-74 Bartlett said they had not gone back to check again.

9-5-74 Bartlett said the office records showed no more arrests at rhe Jensen house,

9-10-74 Bartlett said they had not done anything recently because of labor day
weekend .,

Number of illegals: 14

Working at: Ballantine Packing Company
Foreman: Gene Redondo - a laber contractor
Living at: 5211 Portola Avenue

Del Rey, California
Property Owner: Emilio Ambriz

Transportation: Transportation provided by Gene Redondo.



I, Jose Lopez, residing at 811 Annadale, Sanger, do hereby declare:
Three years ago I worked with a contractor by the name of Salvador Bailon |
of Firebaugh. We worked in Huron, approximately 75 miles from our home. |
Even theough it was far, it was pretty good because we were paid a tolerable
salary, But the following vear Bailen had 80 illegals, and at that time he

refused to inform us what our wzges were until after the work had been done. |
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This made ocur money situation worse,
We tried to make the illegals understand that if they forced us to work

€n a misery, we were going to report them to the Border Patrol. They

shouted back “go ahead Mexican-Americans, they won't listen to you anyway.'

Then, we went to the Border Patrol Office and I found out that what the
illegals told us was very true. We, the Mexican-Americans, are as ignored
as the illegals. I thought that our biggest mistake was to trust in the
laws and in the unreliable rapresentatives of the laws in this state.

Later, I worked for a contractor by the name of Ramon Echeverria of
Huron. This man also laid us off because of the hugh number of illegals
he had working for him, 1 found this ocut through my companions at work.
He did not tell ug directly that he was laying us off becuase he had toco
nany illegals; he was not crazy. He just told us that he had too many
people working ond had no work for us.

In the arca around Sanger a Iew weeks back it was impossible to find
anyone who would give me work because of the number of illegals living in
the barns, chicken coops and condemned houses, It is very hard for us to
find work because the illegals have told me that the contractors and
foremon charge them dues just tolgive them work. We cannot pay taxes and
at the same time purchase jobs.

[ was without work and there was a man named Alejandro Noyola who lives

in Parlier. 1 went with some othear people to ask him for work. He was
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pruning vines and he told me that it would be better for me to go look

for work at some other place because they were apying the illegals only

5 cents a vipme and it wouldn't be worth it for me.

My brother and.l, heing citizens of the United States, went to fight

in the war and now T notice that there are more guarentees for the

illegals than for me,

I say this because when I reported the illegals to

the Border Patrol, the officer didn't say anything.

Six weeks later they

had finished pruning and the Border Patrol never came, Later I rented

a house at 1130 Jensen Avenue in Sanger,

so that they could give it to some illegals.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct

Executed on -~his

California.

i

[/~ day of September, 1974 at

I was told to leave that house
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Jose Lopez?




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - FRESNO AND TULARE COUNTIES

BALLATINE PRODUCE COMPANY

Number of illegals: 14

Working at: Ballatine fields located at Manming and Zediker
Parlier, California

Foreman: Gene Arrendondo

Living at: Jefferson and Del Rey Avenue

Parlier, California

Property Owner: Gene Arrendondo
* Transportation: Transportation and food provided by Geme Arrendondo
Information provided by: Dolores Reyna

11750 East American
Del Rey, California

This information was reported to the Fresno County Border Patrol office
on June 18th, 1974. Officer in charge Bartlett said they would check it out,

History of Border Patrol Response:

6-20-74 Bartlett said nothing had been done yet

6-26-74 Bartlett said they had not gotten around to checking the place
7-22-74 Bartlett said they had gone out but made no arrests

9-5~74 No action taken to date

9-10-74 Nothing has been done since UFW last called due to labor day weekend



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY -

FRESNO AND TULARE COUNTIES

REPORT ON: METZLER AND SONS, INC.
P.0. Box 7875
Fresno, California

Grower - Shipper
peaches, plums, nectarines

No. of Illegals

Living At

Border Patrol Action

g0 6437 Highland Reported to the Border Patrol on
Pariier, Cal. Sept. 19, 1974. No actiom had been
Property owned by - taken as of the 23rd of September.
Metzler & Sons.
Illegals are living
in back of the packing
shad.
10 5005 §. Center Dr, Reported to the Border Patrol on
Parlier, California June 20, 1974. As of September 10,
Property owned by - no action had bheen taken.
Guillermo Avalos
20 4731 Bethel Reported to the Border Patrol on
Del Rey, Cal. June 20, 1974, As of September 10,
Property Ownar - no arrests had been made on the
Antonio Vasquez Vasquez residence,
Vasquez also houses
illegnls for BARR
Packing Co. (See BARR
Report). o
30 3356 S. De Welf Reported to Border Patrol on June 20.
Fresno, Cal. One zrrest made on June 26 - Officer
Property owned by Bartlett said the patrol had arrived
Metzler & Sons. too late and that they would go back.
No further action had been taken as
of September 10, 1974.
33 3378 Zouth Thompson Reported to the Border Patrol on
Parlier, California June 18, 1974. On July 22, 1974
Property Ouwned by - the Patrol arrested eight of the 35.
Matzler & Somns No furtlier action had been taken as of
the 10th of September.
Informant David Rios teld Union staff member Steve Johnson: "I used to live at

the Metzler place on South Thompson and once Henry Metzler told me that he hires
illegals because they worlk harder for less money. He drives them to the field in

the morning and stays with them all day, An illegal who works for Metzler told
me that Metzler now pays only $2.00 per hour. When I worked there, legal workers
were paid $2.30 per hour.” :
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I, Tersy Solnmzap, residing at 13794 West Cymress Street, Farlier,
do hareby declare: , |

That on Augugt 13, 1974, Marie Diaz and myself visited a lmown
rosidence of illegal aliens at 1109 South lsonard Street, Del Rey. We lknew
that illegal allens werc living there bmaum Maria Diaz had made varioun
vigits to this place sipce February of 1974 and talked with the peopls
there and they had admitted being in the United States illegally, Whem

wa arpived T noted that on thia property there weve apprb:dmﬁaly 15 aifleront

living quarters, all gcatterad, different shapss, and sether small, Ve
first went to a ut-shapsd roem whers o fanmily of 8 members, all here
illegally, lived. Maria had talked with them before and taen concernsd
about the health of ome fwo-year old who had a heart problem. The ahﬂd
was still wtreated for the problem. In the very mmall space there were
three beds; wooden floor uncovered with any form of ¥ilas go that splinterad

. faet would be very likely; a table with two or three chairay hot plate,

refrigerator; and sink; also, there was no sealing around the loose deors
go that alr could caplly ontar., The plaes was very dirty and there were
multitudes of flies inside and on the children, Mrs. De Leon talked readily
w!h va because she Imew Maria, She saild that her husband had not been
able to get enough work fraiBarr Oo, go that he had o go elssvwhere to
lock for work, She complained of hawing to pay $€0.00 a month for the
11tt1ls plece and gave us a yent receipt for the month of March signed Ly
their landlord; Dopald L. Wobey, The recelpt ls atiachsd as Exhibli A
Aftor tallkdng with ber awhils, we walked outside and sawv where Uhe
tollat facilitics were located a short distance away from the hutk. We smuh
to whare a group of about six men were standing and began talking with than,
They eaid they were from Michoacan, Mexiso, and here withoul papers. Thew

said that they are now working for Sundance Fruit Co, plcking peaches gix
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days a weak, Afier talking with them evhile, wo telked with soms othswr
men who aaﬂ that they had beem lerad of T by Sundanes Frult Co. bub that
they still have to pay rent to the compan’s Oms of the man told s that
"la Morena® of Sanger, deseribing her as ¢ 3 lady wio ouns the tortillia
factory in Sanger and who has illogal alden. livine above the factory,
brings somo illegal aliens theve to thelr plisa whore they ere then given
work in the surrounding fields all belong og 15 Bayy Conmpeny. I myself
noticed that the fields surrcunding the pr'mises all had boxss clsaprly
marisgd "BARR", Ho said that enothar laboy :ontzetor kuown as %la mx;ragzx*'g
another .mn alse of Sanger, birings other . 1llog..) aliens and lsaves them
there nesrby where they are pub to work in lirr's “1elds. He said that

. they all know these various men to be illega alienn bisaungs they often

talk together, and the other men stending erowd all nedded in apreement.
Thess same msn ther told us that thers wure ox new L1lsgal aliens living
there on thess same premises off %o ome #ido aid hat they had seen them
going to work in Barr's fielda,

I declare under pspalty of perjury that th: foregeing is true and
carrect.

Exeouted in Sanger, this 2lst day of August, 1974.

el ;

. S,

1-'1um:.'
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I, Salvador .onzalez, residing at 571 £. Palm, ieecley, Lalifornia, do
herehy declare:

The last days of May it was very difficult For me to get work.

As 1 had done in prﬂvinus years 1 contected Caniel Lozano, a contractor wi%h
an office at 1223 G Street, Reedley, California. Ha contracts for BalL antine, '
Youngstown Grape Distributere, and Sun Valley Grape Distributers all in the
fesdley area,

I havé worked for Danial Lozano every vear sinece ﬁQEQ.‘ Sometimes I have
sven been one nf his foremen, This year when I contactad him he told me to
come back. All throunh the months of WMay and June and part nf July 1 keot in
contact with Lozano. Finally, he told me that he wouldn't need me hecause he
had that he had more people than he needed. He told me that if he nesdec me he
would call me,

For 17 years I have worked for Huwmilton L.AR. Inc., Minami Wine Co., and 1uo
Packing Co., all in Reedley; Barr Co. in Senger; and Ceprilian in Cinuba, © this
year when T went find work thaey all told me that they had more peonle than they
needsd.

Luring all this time I didn't work. I need to work so that [ can Feed my
wife and four children. 1 also have to pay for my house, tha car, the electricit
the insurance, and my taxes. I must work to buy clotheas for my children who
ao to school. This ysar 1 was not able to seve anything like I had in the yrears
befora,

After 1 had been deried work =t all these companiee 1 felt humiliated
and anxious about not being able to find a job., I sterted talkino to the worksre
at these companies where I had been asking for work. [ found out Lhat they
were illegals anc they told me that they hac paid a "cnyote" to bring them

Fram Ti juana to Califormnia. Some of ‘them osid from ;250 to 3300. Sometimes

thay cannot pay the "coyote" until they have workaed and it takes a very long

0

Y e
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time because there isn't enouch work., They told me that the w.rk was given
in shifts and they don't work too much. They said that the conditions they work
under are bad but that there wae nothing they could do cbout it. They felt

trapped. If they tried to say anything about their conditions they were threat-
ened tkat they would be chased from the camps where they lived. Some of the men

were oaly earning enough to pay room and board and transportation,
1 was told by an illegal that when he came with three athors from Mexico
the Immicration officers told the "coyote":"You “ave come mgain when just
yesterca I sent you back". The "coyote" offrr d the officer money but the
officer sa'd,"Ican't now becausa tha other off c:rs are looking." So they took
the illegals back to Mexico. They came again unother time and had no problems.
In my mind it is not clear why the illegal s have gotten the prefersnce
on jobs and the residents have gotten the prefsrence on income taxes. The
authorities should investigate and control these situations.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that tie foregoing is true and correct.

Executed at ﬁ{&lékﬁgééﬁ/ , California, o thia‘J/g day of

1974,

Salvador Conzalez

ﬂjﬂ 0-{:{/01 (J/M&Oi 3

Ceclaration of Translqtnr:

I read an accurate translation of the aboue declaration to Salvador Gonzalez in

Spanish, and he declared it to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foreaning is trus and correct.

» Lalifornia, on this ﬁ:g day of _—»kﬁéﬂi , 1974

‘Mﬁ—
WwaRin Dir=z

Executed at i

j
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at the {awesh Leman Co., Post Office Tox 325, Lemon Cove, California. Dave amcl

Tom Ketns are the owners: thev took the ranch over fras their father, Nelsom.

}l On Monday, August 26, 31074, I missed a day of work. The reason is

~N O

Etha.t my car broke dewm. The next day, Tuesday, I showed up for work at 7.00 AM
¢ 3i"m¢l Dick Dickerson, the supervisor, told me to po pet my check from the of fice.
i

’ li ie didn't give =» any reason why I was fired. T had been working seven davs a
0 ﬁceek for §2.30 an hour. 1 was never naid for uv overtime.
H l! The man who they hired to take ry place is an illegal alien. There
. {mc' ghout 40 Illewals workine for the Kemns. Some of them sleep in the Fields
e .Li-“ little huts wnder the treecs. others live at Jack Camp on Highway ¥e. 1
. ‘think the reason they hire these illesals to take our places is that they <an
15

16

pay them less,

17
said they couldn't come out becasse they didn’t have enough help. [ alse (ried
18

1tn vot the Sheriff to Jo something about it last Wednesday but he said he
19

20 |
I can't find any vork. ALl the jrowers can hire the illepals for less than I
21 |
k;—m work for.
22

it

: I think it waild be pood if the 'mited Farm Workers would came to
23
: !Lu:::on Cove. ‘Ther mayhe we wouldn't have the illesals taking away our jebs and
24 |
waliing the wages wo down, Y sure hope the "mion comes wp here some day.

25 i ‘

if [ declare under penalty of perjury that the forepoing is true and
26 |

ii{:mr ¢ty
¥ i

fi Pxoented at Farmersville,California on the S day uv: September,
28

FD?J.
29 |

|
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\
touldnit do anything about it either. It has gotten so bad around here that now

I ty pame is Dverett Coverdell., Tor about 10 yoars I have heen wor' .o

1 have already tried calling the border patrol in years past and t'he,‘
0 !' -

!
|
I
|
|
|
1.
!
|
|
|




| I, Racon Merrufo, residing at 1120 M, Street, Readley, Celifornia do

herehye daclaret

That I hove worked for the Flamingo Tortialla Factory of Parlier, Califognia

eince February of 19587, I worked Por Julla Yoarra, and Julia's son in law,

Gararda, ulen worked on my crew. On August 8,1974 Gerardo told ma I wes fired and

that I should come back to gat my pay check. At our workplace theres weore fiva

workeras aside from myself and the Garardo there were two men and one woman.
Thoy were a1l illasgal eiiens form Mexico. I was paid $100 péf week, the other

two men were paic 70 @ wesk, end the women wae paid 350 a week, Garardo gave .no
reason why I was fired, but I suspect it was because Julia“was tired of paying me
more monay then the others.Sha knowa that this year there are many illegals in
this country who ars glad to work for little money.

Sinca 1 was Fired I have tried te find work at two other "Tortilliaria's"
and also threc pscking eheda. Thoy were Ballantine Packing Co., Royal Valley
Packing Co., and Hemilton Fruit Co. All of these places told ms they needed ro . |
one this year. Jobs are very hard to Find, and losing the one that I had hes
made things wery hard for me end my family.

I duclers undsr peralty of perjury that ths foregoing is true and corract,

Exocuted at Selma, Celifornia on this 6th day of Septamber, 1974. /
; P g F

(¢ ; &

‘amon Marrufo  /

Declaration of Ticnalatord

1, Juen Salmzur, am fluent in 4he English and Spenish languages. I Read @&n

t laccurate translatian of the abova daclaration to Ramon Marrufo in Spenish, and

| he declared it to be trus.

1 declare under penalty of perjury that the Foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 6th day of September, 1974 ?t Snlma, CaXilfoppia.

J/ duan Salazar




I, Mario Garcia, living here at No. 50 Ferlier Iabor Camp, Academy
Road, Pa;lief, daélare:

That for the past four years I have been working for Waldo
Johnson who lives at 13138 South Academy in Kinsburg. During other
yvears ve always worked for four months each year. This year we
worked only one and a half nonths, because Johnson hired 40 illegals.

last year he employsd 15 illerals,

I declare, under venalty of nerjury, that the foregning is
true and correct.

Executad at Farlier, Califernia on this 3lst day of August 1974.

e > g; <
’. 5.

Maric Gareils
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I, Ramona Munoz Lncinia, residing at 7092 Navalencia fdvenue, Reedley, i
California, do hereby declare:

During the month of ffay I worked for the contractor Tomas Flores for 4

weaks, My work was thinning cotton and I worked with many illegals. The illuge!

told me they were from Mexico without papers.

After we had worked 4 wseks, Tomas Flores told ma: "I'm going to have to
seperate the illegals from the légala.“ Flores .crew, in phich i was working:
was broken up. 30 or 35 illegals went to a crew of Manusl Chavez that was
already made up of illegals. I was left on a crew of 13 legal residents.

Three illegals were added to this crew. They told us that they were from Noch-~
itlan, Mexico, and they were only 15, 16, and 17 years old. Tomas Flores justle
fied this by sayin: "They are better protected from the Immigration here with
vou than with the other crew. The legesl residents' crews aren't checked too
often.”

After the legal residents were seperated from the illegals, we were given
only one and a half weeks of work. The fllegal crew wes given threes and a half
weeks of work, The contractor probably gave us less work becausa we w&ra-gaid
more than the illegals, We got 12.00 per hour and he only paid them $1.80 '

per hour,

Three weeks after 1 was laid off, ] went back to Florea with my two sons wha
needed work to pay for their clothes to go to school. The 35 illegals were

still werking for Flores but he said that he hacd no work for my sons.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the Foregoing is true and correct.

/, California, on this Q¢ day of :__Aéi%?ﬁéff?

f( 2 lq/?wﬁmﬁumﬂ- Y]
Ramona Munoz EnCiniﬂ2§é¥W%£Aﬂﬁ-f

Executed at

1974,

LFE]



SPECIAL REPORT: HARBORERS OF ILLFGAL ALIENS

Title 8 of the United Statas Code Annotated, Section 1324, paragraph (a)
states:

(3)Any person.......who willfully or krowingly comnceals, harbors, or shields
from detectios, cor attempts to conceal, harber, or shield from detection, in
4ny place, including any building or sny aeans of transportation; or

(4) willfully or kncwingly encourszes or induces, or attempts to encourage

or induce, either directly or indirectly, the entry into the United States of -

any alien, including alien crewman, not duly admitted by the immigration
officer or not lawfully entitled to enter or reside within the United States
under the terms of this chapter or any other law relating to the immigration
or expulsion of aliens, shall be guilty of a felony, and upon conviction
thereof shall be punished by a fine not exceeding 52,000 or by imprisonment
for a term not exceeding five years, or both, for each alien in respect to
whom any violation of thie subsection oceurs;

Of the nearly 200 hsrborers of illegal aliens that the United Farm
Workers of America have reported to the Fresnmo Rorder Patrol, the U.S.
Attorney, and the Fresno County Sheriff's Department, none have been
arrested. A bus driver for the Fresno office of the U.S. Border Patrol
had had so little exposure to the enforcement of the harboring laws that
he stated in a telephone conversation with & member of the Union legal
staff that the Border Patrol did not have the authority to arrest people
for harboring illegal aliens.

The people ideatified as harborers in thie report include such men as
Antonio Vasquaz, a resident of 4731 South Bethel Avenue in Fresno County.
Illegal aliens were firat reported at his addreses on June 20th of this
year. On July 1,a series of photographs appeared in the Fresno Bee news-
paper showing soue of Vasquez' illegals fleeing from the photographer.

On July 2nd, television footage was shown on local channel 47 showing
Vasquez pointing a rifle at the television reporter as he was photogra-
phiag the eame illegala. On the following morning, after insistent
complaints frem the television station, the Border Patrol was observed
by neighbers while investigating the complaints. According to sworn
declar-tiouns frow the neighbors, the Border Patrol van pulled up in the
drive way of the Vasquez residence just ac the illegals fled through the
back fence. The officers made no attempt to apprehend the suspects.

To this day Mr, Vasquez has not been arrested for harboring nor have any
of the illegals living with him been arrested.

According to statements made by one of the illegals living at the
Vasquez residerce, he and the other twenty men staying outside in card=-
board lean-tos, pay Vasquez $30 a week to live there. Vasquez is netting
around $35,000 a year in profits off harboring illegal aliens.seven months
of the vear,

Mawuel Herrera, the operator of the Del Rey Hotel on Pismo and Portola
streets in Del Rey, California, alsc harbors illegal aliens. On August
1, United "arm Worker pickets stood outside this hotel asking the illegal
aliens not to go to work. Twenty of these illegale asked if they could go
on strike with the UFW. The aliens were warned by the Union organizers
that such a mova might get them arrested, and they were asked to leave
the country instead. Mr. Herrera admitted in front of representatives



of the Justice Department who weve present that day that he knew that at
least 121 of the people living in his hotel were illegal aliens.

The next morning 41 of the undocumented workers living in the Del
Rey Hotel were arrested in an unusually large Border Patrol raid. The
U.S. Attorney who was present at the arrest was restrained from arresting
Mr. Herrera for harboring because the Border Patrol said they could not
afford to retain the aliens during the trial.

Mr. Herrera's illegal workers told witnesses that they paid him an
average of $42 per week to stay in his hetel. With an average of 127
men living there, Mr. Herrera makes close to $150,000 per year on a seven
month basis,

The harboring statutes alsc cover those who smuggle aliens into
the country. Called "coyotes" by farm workers, these smugglers provide
a service that is essential to the successful entry of most aliems.

The Union legal staff has accumvlated evidence on several coyotes
operating in the Fresno area. Of the six reported so far this year,
none have been srrested, even though license numbers and addresses
were provided in many cases.

In one case, the Union turned over the transcript of a tape recording
which detailed a deal being made between a Union member and another
of Fresno's coyotes, Alberto Saez to transport a man from Tijuana, Mr.
Saez also runs two camps for illegals in Parlier, California.
The U.S. attorney seems willing to prosecute harborers and smugglers, but
the Border Patrol dces not seen capable of apprehending them.

See declarations on the following pages for more information on
Mr, Vasquez and Mr. Herrera.
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I, Dolores Lopez, residing at 4672 S. Bethel Ave., Del Rey,
do herebye declare:

That on July 3, 1974 at about 7:30 A.M. I was at the corner
of Behel and American Avenues, less than a guarter of a mile from
my house which is right across the street from 4731 -S. Bethel.
From where I was standing I could see clearly the house at 4731
which is owned by Antonio Vasquez. In the past I have seen Antonio
Vasquez take maybe 12- 18 workers who live there at his house in
the back in the horse barn and in some cardboard lean to's to work
in the morning. He drove them in his pickup/ camper, license .

# 963921, He usually comes back after he drops them off, I've
heard that thev work in the fields for Barr Packing Co.

This morning at 7:30 my dgend told me to look down at Vasquez!
house, I looked, and I saw a Border Patrol van parked in front of
his house, I knew it was the Border Patrol wvehical because it was
green, and 1 saw later that it had an emblem on the door which said
"Border Patrol". I also saw the officers' dark green uniforme
later,

As I was watching, a woman who lives a%t the house wélkad out
to the van and talked to the officers for about 5 minutes. During
this time T saw several of the people who live in back of the housq
running in the opposite direction of the Border Patrol. They ran

to 2 field which is in the back of the barn where the workers live/

It seemed odd to me tha* the agents went to the front of the
house rather fthan going back where the illegals were to catch them,
S0y when the Border Patrol agents drove by me after they were

through %alking to the woman, T was kind of staring at them, They
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made a U~turm at the corner at Americar and drove back down to the
house again, At thig time I eslled my hushand, who was at our
house watching what was going on, on the telephone, He told me
that he was watching what was going in, He said that the agents
went into an orchard which is right next to where the i1llegals
have been staying and looked around., When they saw that the illega
were not in plain sight, they left. I saw the van go by within a
couple of minutes after they had returned that second time. It did
not return any more,

The otner people who saw the Border Patrol come were my
hushand, Jesse Lopez, and my friend, Efufrna.a Pevez .

I declzre under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed on this Grd day of J&/# » 1974, at Q e/ E%;z "

California.

A
s

Dolores lope

!
=




I, Williem Antoire Powers, residing at U653 N, Glenn, do hereby declare:
That on or about the First of Auvgust, 197L,T was accompening the United
FarniWorkers of America, AFI-CI0, strike line as a First Aid perscn while
in Del Rey, Californiae The reason for our strike line activities that
day was that we wanted to explain to the illegal allens that they wers
being brought into the United States by the grewers, purposely to breszi
the strikes of the Unifed Farmworkers, To my understanding most of tl.e
illegals, after talking with the United Farmworker Strikers, were sym-
pathetic and wanted to go on strike, IT they could not go on strike they
sald that they did not have enough money to go home because either they
did not get enough work to pay for their way or that the growers did not
pay then enough money.

My location, betwesn the hours of three (3) a,m. and four~thirty
(L:30) aume} was at the Del Ney Hotel, located on the corner of Pismo
and Portola Streets in Del Rey, California. Tt was dnring this time per.-
iod that T had a conversation with Manuel Herrara, leasor and operator
of the Del. Hey Hotel. Because of the deplorable cendltions thet the men
were living in, I asked Mr, Herrara if his Hotel was a registered Labor
Camp and whether he knew the laws concerning Labor Camps, To this he ra.
plied, " Yes, I guess you would call this a Labor Camp,", and when ask-
ed about registration, he said it was not registered.

L then asked lMr, Herrara if he knew of the resident status of the
men living at his lotel, He stated, " Most of thes, men are tllegel 2=
1lens.", Vhen further gquestioned as to his responsibility concerning the
law and how he was helping exploit the men, he sald he knew that they
were illegal and that his giving them a place to lve was Against the
lawe Concerning expleitation, he said he felt that he was treating thow

faire I latter learned that he was charging *he men L2,00 dellars on th



" averaze per weel, mtan you add that up for the 127 men w_hq live there
w for sprar, £9ven months; you come up with the total of $149,352,00 ,
3 For this he provides the quarters that Mr, Herrara woulﬁn't want his
é ! family to live iny; and he gives them food that is allowed to ferment

2 for at least a couple of days. Above all this, no sheets are given to

g the men, Lecause,"They just take theme".

I asked him why he broke the law and exploited these people, To

g ! this he “urned and walked away. _

@ Most,if not all, of our conversation was heard by several picket
1y line observers, one being form the justice department out of San Francisce,
il about three Fresno County Sheriffs, and 20-25 United Farmworkers Stikers.
Ia -
13 I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true md
14 CorTecye 3
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I, Maria Diaz, residing at 1260 N, Hemlock, Reedlsy, Califobnia,
do hereby declare:

That on July 6, 1974 nmyself and Helen Ferry visited 13198 E. Manning,
Parlier, under the advisemen®t by Juan Salazar and Ricardo Macias that this

. place was inhabited by illegal aliens, We talked with a women living
in the whits house with the above noted address and she admitted that
there were illegal aliens living in an old barn in back of the house,
We went back to the barn and talked with 12 men who admitted that they
ware here illegally from Mexicc., These men said they worked between
two and three days a week for Ricardo Hinojoaa, 13428 Manning, Parlier,
who ig their uiabor contractor. Ricardo tras a man working at the camp.
doing ecoking and he takes them to worke Their main complaint was that
they are not given enough to eat even though they have to pay 528 a week
for food and %30 a month for roon,

Upon this visit we found a check stub with Ricardo Hinojosa's name
on it and on a later visit on July 15, 1974 we were permitted to enter
and take pletures of the ingide of the barne

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and
correct.

Executed at Parlier, California on the 16 da of July, 1974

-

)

lMardia Dia=




DETACH BEFORE CASHING CHECK

STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND DEDUGTIONS FOR

EMPLOYEE'S RECORD COVERING PAY PERIOD
AND INCLUDING GATE SHOWN BELOW

RICARDO HINOJOSA

A
-

"TI:ITALWABEQ ‘n—/ 7 i'

EOCIAL )
SECURITY TAX B

WITHHOLDING i
U. 8. INCOME TAX

5.D. L

STATE
INCOME TAX

- bocd 77150
Colo7 X0 ,

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS |

l

i

1

|

4

I

bt s s ma - — !‘ I
AMDUNT THIS CHECK | ‘50 [@ ]

This check stub is from a paycheck drawn on the account of Ricardo Hinojosa
of 13428 West Manning Avenue in Parlier, California. It was found in an old
barn inhabited by illegal aliens located at 13198 East Manning in Parlier,
California. This illegal alien, M. Pefia, will never receive the $9.39
deducted for Social Security Tax. Note the deduction for rent (borde) and
the rarely seen withholding notation, "coyote $20.00". '"Coyote" is slang

for a man who earns his living by smuggling aliens across the border illegally
into the Uaited States.,

According to another check stub found in this same barn, a J.G. Lopez netted
$14.05 from gross wages of $58.05 after deductions of $30.00 for rent, $10.00
for an advance on wages, and $3.96 for Social Security tax.



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - KERN COUNTY - SUMMATION

During a four month time period, United Farm Worker staff members in
Lamont and Delano, California reported a total of 1,778 illegal aliens
working at ranches in Kern County which were being struck by the United
Farm Workers, AFL-CIO. Of those 1.778 illiegal aliens, the Bakersfield
office of the United States Border Patrol caught a total of 175.

What follows is a list of struck ranches in the Kern County area where

the presence of illegal aliens was reported more than once.

BOZANICH & SONS Delano, California 8 illegals
CARATAN Delano, California 32 illegals
DEL CORE Bakersrield, Cal. 40 illegals
GIUMARRA VINEYARDS Bakersfiald, Cal. 150 illegals
MOSESIAN Delano, Cal. 82 illegals
LAWRENCE VINEYARDS Delzno, California 20 illegals
ROBERTS FARMS McFarland, California 86 illegals
SANDRINI BROTHERS Me¥arland, California 24 illegals
TENNECO INC. Bakersfield, Cal. 20 illepals
TUDOR Dalano, California 21 illegals
M. ZANINOVICH Delano, California 57 iliegals

The reports on the following pages are examples of the kind of information
turned over to the Bakersfield office of the United States Border Patrol.
Each report gives a summary of what action, if any, was taken by the

Border Patrol once they had received these reports

Information of the use of illegal ..liens in the Kern County area was

researched from June to September, 1974.
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ROBERTS FARMS, INC. Grower - Shipper
Route 1, Box 600
McFarland, Cal

Number of illegals: 40

Working At: Roberts Farms

Foreman: Ruben Valles

Living at: William Mosesian's Camp

Mountain View Road
1 and one half miles east of Weedpatech

Property Owner: William Mosesian
Transportation: Provided by Ruben Valles
Camp cook provides food for which the illegals pay

526.00 2 week.

This information provided te the Bakersfield office of the United States Border
Patrol.on July 1, 1974,

Number of illepals: 25

Working at: Roberts Farms

Foreman: Jesgse Marquez

Living at: Camp on DiGiorgio Road

West of Comanche
Transportation: Jesse Marquez

COMMENTS: These illegals are living in barracks - the beds are dirty, the
mattresses smell of urine.
They work twelve hours a day: eight hours in hoeing cotton, four
in tomatoes. There were no bathrooms made available in the fields,

This information was provided te the Bakersfield Office of the U.S. Border
Patrol on the 8th of August, 1974.

SUMMATION ON ROBERTS FARMS: Between June 10 and September 20, 1974, the
United Farm Workers of America reported the
presence of eightyone illegals working on
the ROBERTS FARMS. During that three month
period, the Bakersfield Horder Patrol office
apprehended a total of fourteen illegal aliens
on Roberts Farms.



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEYN FARM LABOK

ACTIVITY - KERN COUNTY

GIUMARRA VINEYARDS CORPORATION
P,0O. 1969

(irower-Shipper
Girapes

Bakersfield, Califorania

No. of illegals

"~ Living At

Baorder Patrol Action

18

50

19

36

9909 Myrrle Ave.

Trailer behind the house
Lamont, Cal.

Robert's foreman, Santana
Soto owns the trailor. He
charges the illegals $25 a

week for sleeping on the floor.

724 Jackson

in a boarding house ownaed
by a man named Mike
Bakersfield, Cal. These
illegals entered the Valley
by train, paying 5250 a man
to their coyote.

Informant didn't know where
their living gquarters were
located, The illegals were
working together as a crew in
a Guimarra field located on
Comanche and PRear Mountain Rd,

10008 Velma

10009 Velma

9920 Velma

Lamont, California

The illegals are living 6-7
to a house. Properties owned
by Secundina Melendez

9916 Elmco

Lamont, California
Propertv owned by Maria
Rodriquez. -
Giumarra foreman Narciso
Quinones Maldonado is
providing the illegals
with transportaticn.
Living conditions in the
housge very poor -~ crowded
and dirty.

Reported to the Border Patrol
to Officer Neil Henry on the
10th of July, 1974, At the end
of August, they were still 15
illegals living there in the
trailor.

Reported to the Border Patrol
on the l4th of June, 1974,
Officer Ron Worley took the
information. At the end of
August, they were still Jliving
in the boarding house.

Reported to the Border Patrol
on the 8th of June, 1974.

No action had been taken by the
18th of August by which time
the harvest had ended and the
illegals had left the area.

Reported to the Border Patrol

on the 6th of June, 1974,

On July 10, a second repart

was turned over to the Border
Patrol as the number of illegals
living in the Velma houses had
inereased. No action taken by

the Border Patrol on either repart
as of the end of July.

Reported to the Border Patrol
on the 6th of June, 1974,
Follow up reports made during
the summer indicated that there
were still illegals living in
the Elmeco house as of August 1.



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALTEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - KERN COUNTY

ZANINOVICH FARMS
Route 1, Box 910
Delane, Cal.

Grower - Shipper
Grapes

No. of Illegals Living At

Border Patrol Action

13 314 State Street Reported to the Border Patrol on
in small cabins & July 18, 1974. Reported again on
a trailor next to the July 30 -~ no action had been taken.
house,
Earlimart, Cal.
5 Two houses just east Raported to the Border Patrol on
of 20819 Ensign St. June 11, 1974. Reported again on
Richgrove, Cal. June 1% -~ pn action had been taken.
Reported again on June 26 - agent
said information was not in office.
TEX-CAL Grower
Route 1 Box 156 prapes

Earlimart, Cal.

No. of illepals Living At

Border Patrol Action

4 Oasis Cafe
Earlimart, Cal

29 Camp at Avenues 176 & 48
Earlimart, Cal.
10 Behind the Rancho Crande

Earlimart, Cal,

All three living locations as well
as the name of the ranch were re-
ported to the Border Patrol on the
26th of June, 1974. Reported again
on July 2 - agent in charge said
information was not in office.
Reported again on July 9 - ne action
had been taken.

HEGGBLADE - MARCULEAS - TENNECO, INC.
201 New Stine Road

Bakersfield, California

Grower = Shipper - Distributor -
Sales Agency
Grapcs {(fruits & vegatables)

No. of illegals Living At

Border Patrol Action

20 Housa located at
Avenues 208 & 56

Delano, Cal.

Reported to the Border Patrol on
July 18, 1974, Reported again on
August 8 - no action taken.

Foreman -~ Anito Mucios




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR - KERN COUNTY

CARATAN INC.
Route 2, Box 258

Grower - Shipper
Grapes

Delano, Cal.

93215

No. of illegals Living At Border Patrel Action
3 Camp on 24th & Ave. 160 Reported to the Bakersfield
Delano, California office of the US Border Patrol
Transportation provided on May 21, 1974, Information
by Caratan buses. phoned in again on May 29 - no
Foreman Bok Ranches prevides action had been taken., Revported
the illegals with food in the zgain on June 19 - Agent in charge
camnp, said border patrol had no record
of the previous reports.
15 On Caratan property - Reported to the Border Patrol on
located on Cecil & Fomoso. May 21, 1974, Reported again on
Living in shacke behind the May 31 as the illegals were still
Caratan cold storage locker. 1living there. HReported again on
Transportation is provided June 19 - agent in charge said no
by coyote named Andrew reports had been received from the
Torres. United Farm Workers during May.
Reported again on the 9th and
17th of September - the property
had never been checked.
TUDOR & SONS Crower - Shipper

Route 1, Box 217

Delano, Cal.

Grapes

No. of illegals

Living At

Norder Patrol Action

4

20

724 Righ Street

Delano, Cal,

Property owned by
Virginia Oropesa,

Food and eransportation
provided by Virginia
Oropesa.

Tudor foreman Gil Vallejo
knows these workers are
illegals.

338 Fremont St.

Delano, Cal.

Property owned by

Blas Franco.
Transportation provided
by Virginia Oropesa.

Reported to the Border Patrol

on the 1lth of June, 1974,
Reported again on the 19th of

June - no action taken.

Reported agaia on June 28 - agent
said he would call back and let us
know if they had checked the place -
agent never called back.

Reported again om July 7 - agent
said they had never received

the report in the first place,

Reported to the Border Patrol on

June 11, 1974, Reported again on
June 19th - no action had been taken.
Reported again on July 2, 1974 -

no action had been taken.
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I, Ernie Barrientos, 8o declare that:

On March 2], 1974 at 11:30 P.!1. a car came in to the Caratan
camp on Road 160, Avenue 24, The car stopped at the kitchen.
There was a lot of commotion so I got up and looked out the window .
The driver got out and opened up the back seat and 5 illegals got
out. They went to the Boarding House at the camp where there
was 14 other illegals. 'They got some beds and mattresses and put the
in the same room with the other illegals.

At this time I was employed by Caratan. The next morning the
foreman who could not speak Spanish came and asked me to help the
illegals fill out the application forms. I asked for their names,
date of birth and Social Security cards. The names on the cards,‘
hovever, were different from the names they had given. I was
helping them £ill out thein applications in the room where they
had slept.

From talking with the illegals, I found out that they pay
the "coyote" $240.00 each to bring them from Memico. They must pay
this in American monev. The illegals refuse to identify the ‘
"coyote" beyond caliling him "the coyote." They did tell me,
however, that they went to Calexico where they are taken to the
horder. When it is dark or they cannot Lbe seen, the "covote"
tells them to jump the fence at the border. He tells them that
it must be done quickly. Some break their legs or get caught Dﬁ
the wire but the coyote urges them on. There is a van on the |
other side of the border. . Up to 20 men will be put in the back.
Ther is almost no ventilation since there is only one window up
front. The van takes the illegals to the outskirts of Indio
where there is an inspection station. There the “coyote tells
them to scatter and that he will meet them in Los Angeles on a
certain day at a certain place at a certain time. If they are not

there they are left bLehin d- liot all make it and there were
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some in this group that did '‘ng.
The illegals are paid $2,4]/hour. Szcial Seclzicy,
insurance, unemployment compensation and Tezmster -dues ars

taker out. The dues amouat to $23.00/month. One illegal

protested to a Teamster organizer and he was told that there

must be some mistake in the company and to check there.

The illegals are paid by check on Saturday. $16.00/meek: is

taken out for food. Itlis cooked in the camp by a cook and .t

is "the worst food I have ever eaten.

On June 16, 1974 (approximately) Willie Barrientos came

to the camp and T gave him the information zbout the illega..
He gave it to gyyy lernandez who repo;ted it to the Border
Patrcl. On June 15 I went to the dedication ceremony at
Forty Acres and I was returning to the camp aftecwards when

I gaw the Border Patrol coming down Road 160 and then turr

to Avenue 24. They stopped a 100 yards frcm camp and then
flipped a U (turn). They came back on Avenue 24, sﬁopped-LuJ
the stop sign and drove off. They did no% get out of their

L]

wr ob 2ay time.. They did not tryv to inspect the camp at &

\ iy
that the hast time to come is 1iOCHN. %he time was #4:1Z P.M.
on a pay day so that no cne would be thers even if the
Bordur PAtrol had bothered o investigate.

T declare, under penaltyv of porjury, that the foregeing

im true and correct.

Executed at Delano California on the 26 day of June, i1V

- = - a
Eorrsy Dol

Einie Darrientos ;

i
|

When the illegals' repori was f£iled, the Eorder Patrol was to.id
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"DECLARATION OF RAMON GUTTERREZ

I, Ramon Gutiervez, declare and say that:

I live at the Sierra Vista Labor Camp on Highway 176 just north of
County Line Road in Tulare County, California. On the southern side of the
carp there cre about 200 people living in box cars. Of these about 140 are in
this country illegally. They are brought here from Mexico by coyotes. They
pay $250.00 to $300.00 to come here. They are taken from the border to Santa
Ana or E1 Montz and are brought here six to eight in a car. They always arrive
during the night.

The Irmigration Departwent has been here three tines in the month
and a half that I have lived here. Each time they have taken 30 to 35 people
-away. Each time, three days later, the people are brought back again. When
the Immigration Depariment takes them from the camp they are sent to El1 Centro,
Californiz cnd then they are sent across the border to Mexicali or Tijuana.
Then they are brought back across the border by the same coyotes that brought
then the first time. Hach time they have to cross the border they are charged
cnother $250.00 to $300.00. Some of the people here still owe the coyotes
mongy. Thney have a credit system and the coyotes come here at night to collect.
If the people con't pay they are turned over to the Immigration Department.
inere are many places where I can't work because it is cheaper for
the grovers to hire‘the illegels. If I can find work it is usually at a
lower wege. If you support the United Farm Workers of America here you have
to be quick en your feet because the growers make it hard for you. Both the
grevers end the Tesmstors want the illegals here because the growers can pay
less mney to the illegals and the Teamsters can chargq them Union dues with-
cut ever having to give them any benefits, “

I declere uader penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and
cotroct.

Executed-at Delano, California on the 31st day of August, 1974

f/(wicﬁtl’ln!éd}_ A—;: ; £301.5 pA
RAMON GUTIERREZ
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DECLARATION CI' DOMINCO GONZALEZ,
I, Domingo Gonzalez; reeiding at 800L Horeld Street, Lamont, California

hereby declares

The ERD office in Lamont sent nine of us to the King Ranch. On Saturdasy,

August3, 197h we got there at 6300 a.m,, because the work was supposed to start
at 6230, When we arrived, the foreman 4cld us that he could only glve us four
hours of work, Overnight he had gotten together a crew of about 20 people;
about eleven of them were 1llegal aliens, The foreman would not tell me his

name, and I don't know the contractorts name either,

I ta'xed to one of the 1llegale, and he told me they were paylng them $2.00
an hour, They promised us $2.,L40 an hour, There was no water and no tollet,

We had to go ask for water at a house nearby,

We worked for five and a helf houms., The foreman had asked us to come
back on Monday, 1ut before we left he sent word for us not to come back,

I declare unc'sr penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct,

Executed ot M:ﬂ"j 5 Gal:lforn:la th:!.s /o day of

——A&g.:ﬁ._.__ s 197h, .
Q)

.ngo Gonzalez

I Em:;’“r LOoa /\)_/agﬁk‘n, declare that T am fluent in anﬂ I-EA
Lnsmd English and that 1 read the foregoing declaration +o / h‘ml“iﬁ'ﬁ f%ﬂm&i}

n Spahish and he decl: 'ad 1t to be trua,

ﬁ, q
m Eﬁa J_acvdz;‘&i_
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I, Ramon QClmos, hereby declare:

I am an assistant to the attorneys for the Unit?d
Farm Workers of America. My principal job is to observe
and report events on the picket lines. My address is
723 Cooper Road, Oxnard, California.

On August 8, 1974, I was with a UFW picket line at
the tomate field at the corner of Van Allen and Gawne
Roads. I have been told the field is farmed by Hatanaka.
The Border Patrol arrived with three buses and two cars,
As soon as they appeared, about 50 workers about 200 yards from
where I was vegan running and ran into a corn field. The
Border Patrol men looked around a little then left.

Later the same day, about 11:55 A.Me, We had moved
to a fleld on Farmington Road near Lonetree, which I believe
1z farmed by Yestern Towate Growers and Shippers., The
Border Patrol arrived in three cars and 2 truck. The
truck, with two patrolmen, went to the part of the field
about 100 yardz in front of me, and the cars went to another
part of the field. The two patrolmen then put eilght people
working in the field inside the trueck and began walking
toward the truek with six cthers.

At that® time, an Angle uan drove up to the patrolmen

in & yellow and white pickup. He 18 known to me as Gene Brown,
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Production Manager Tor Western Tomato Growers and Shippers.
He talked to the patrolmen about ten minutes. Then the
patrolmen released all fourteen people and they returned
to work.

I declare vnder penalty of perjury that the foregoing
is true and correct.

Executed in Stockton, California, August 16, 1974,

'-.., /n’ ’f'—':.} 7
{ , - o f .l' ..". [P P -
/';l R N e A D i




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - MONTEREY COUNTY

SUMMATION: Between May 22 and September 9, 1974, Juan Huerta, head of the

United Farm Workers' King City field office, reported a total of 203 illegal
aliens to the Salinas office of the United States Border Patrol. During that
three month time period, follow-up conversations with the Border Patrol indicated
they had not picked up a single illegal alien in the King City area. Included
below are two sample reports given to the Salinas Border Patrol by Mr. Huerta.

REPORT ON: CRINKLAW RANCH
OWNED BY: WILLIAM CRINKLAW

Number of Illepals: 22
Foreman: Fidel Tirado and Ramon Geuara

Living at: Durazno Labor Camp
Located on Broadway near King City, California by the
King City Cementery

Property Owner: William Crinklaw
Transportation: William Crinklaw
Comments ! Foreman Fidel Tirado never asks for papers. His orders

are to hire the workers regardless of their legal or
non-legal status.

Reported to the Salinas office of the United States Border Patrol on May 22.
Officer in charge Koohns said they would do what they could. As of June 11,
no action had been taken,

REPORT ON: GREENFIELD FARMS OWNER: Robert Thorp
Arroyo Seco Road Bassette & Sons
Greenfield, Cal.

Number of illegals: 18
Foreman: Vicent Garcia & Luis Garcia
Living at: Labor Supply Camp

106 Oak Street
Greenfield, California

Transportation: Provided by Robert Therp and the Garcias

Reported to the Salinas office of the United States Border Patrol on June 29.
No action taken as of the 20th of July.




Auvgust 2, 1974

I, Irineo Zuniga, declare the following:
I and seven other farm workers were discharged from our jobs
at Las Colinas Vineyards Ltd., in San Lucas, California, because

the company is employing illegal workers in air places.

Las Colinas Vineyards empioys a labor contractor by the name

of Anthony Veca. He is supplying the company with undocumented
workers.

We have called the Border Patroul office in Salinas, but they
sald they were to busy to come to San Lucas promptly. Therefore,
do to the actions of the company and the Border Patrol we are
unemployed.

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the above declaration

is true and correct.

1Z/3h



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

SUMMATION: Between June 5, 1974 and September 25, The United Farm Workers'
Organizing Office, located in Santa Maria, California, reported
the presence of 265 illegal aliens to the San Luis Obispo office
of the United States Border Patrol. Of those 265 illegal aliens,
63 were apprehended by the border patrol.

OWEN T. RICE & SONS, INC. Grower = Shipper
1910 E. Stowell Road Potatoes
Santa Maria, Cal. 93454

Number of illegals: &3

Working at: Owen T. Rice properties located on East Betterarias Road
Foreman: Labor contractor Alejandro Ahumado

Living at: In a small town called Guadalupe near Santa Maria
Transportation: Alejandro Ahumado

Information provided by: Monica Flores
617 West Main Street
Santa Maria, Cal.

This information was reported to the U.S. Border Patrol - San Luis Obispo office -
on the 8th of July, 1974. The officer in charge said they would check the field.
During the following three months, United Farm Worker staff members called the

San Luis Office nine times to ask what action the border patrol had taken on

this information. On August 9, 1974 Agent McCluse told us they had picked up

six illegals on the Rice Ranch - the rest of them got away.

FURUKAWA SALES, COMPANY Grower = Shipper
865 Black Road Lettuce, strawberries, vegatables
Santa Maria, California 93454

Number of illegals: 40

Working at: Furukawa Farms

Foreman: Alfonso Robles

Living at: " Barracks located on the Furukawa property behind the
owner's ranch house.

Transportation: Provided by Furukawa buses

Food: Provided by labor contractor Felipe Rivera

Comments: Workers live in barracks: the bathing and toilet facilities are
filthy. The illegal workers are pushed to work faster and paid
less then the legal workers. They are forced to pay for and eat
the food provided whether they like it or not.

This information reported to the U.S. Border Patrol, San Luis Obispo office,
on the 5th of June, 1974. The agent in charge said he didn't know when they
would be able to check out this location. On August 1, 1974, two months
later, the patrol picked up ten illegals working at Furukawa., The rest

of the undocumented workers had already left the area.



REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR ACTIVITY - SANTA BARBARA COUNTY

e e e

SOUZA BROTHERS PACKING COMPANY Grower - Shipper
P.0. Box 405 lattuce
Santa Maria, California 93454

Number of illegzls: G
Working at: Seuzz Brothers' property at DNonovan & Blossen Road
Foreman: Pedrc Sanchez

Food & Tranmsportatioun: Pedro Sanchez

This information was reported to the San Luis Obispo Border Patrol office on
the 9th of August, 1974. Officer Berry said they would check the place out
in the morning. By the 29th of Auguse, no action had been taken.

VARGAS LABOR CONTRACTOR COMPANY
1100 block of West Ceook Street
Santa Maria, California

Vargus, a labor contractor, is providing illegal aliens to:

TEPUSQUET VINEYARDS 26 illegals
NIPOMO FARMING CCOMPANY 10 illiegals
HONBO FARMS 22 illegals
SISQUOC VINEYARDS 66 illegals

Vargus is housing these illegais in an apartment complex located on the
1000 - 1100 block of West Cook Street in Santa Maria, California. He
provides them with transportation to and from the above mentioned ranches.
He also sells the illegals the food they est,

Information provided by: Monica Flores
617 West Main Street
Santa Maria, California

Information on Vargus &s well as the location of the fields where the illegals
were working was given to the San Luis Obispo office on the U.5. Border Patrol
on numerous occasions by United Farr Worker staff members.

On August 27, the border patrel picked up eight of the 66 illegals at Sisquoc,
three of the 22 illegals at Honbe Farms, and ten at the Vargus' apartment.

No other action has been taken against Vargus, who is one of the bigger
illegal alien contractor's in the Santa Maria area.

SHEEHEY FARMS Grower
East Betteravia Road
Santa Maria, Cal.

Number of illegals: 22 Living at: California Hotel
Foreman: Padro Palomo Caravan Hotel
Working at: Sheshey Farma Santa Maria, Cal.

Comments: Sheehey tells foreman Pedro Palomo ahead of time when the
Border Patrol is in the area so that Palomo can clear out
the field.
This information was turned over to the border patrol n August 8, 1974,
The Border Patrol picked up eight illegals living at the California Hotel.
Sheehey Farms has not been raided sc¢ far this year.




SPECIAL STRIKE REPORT: ON THE USE OF ILLEGAL ALIENS DURING THE CALLO STRIAL

On September 6, 1974 160 workers picked up United Farm Worker huelps

flags and struck the E & J Gallo ranch in Livingston, California.

Within the next five days, 270 workers had left the Livingston fislds

in sympathy for the strike. On the third day of the strike, union
organizers in the area called union headquarters to report that several
illegal aliens had come to the UFW office to report that large numbers

of illegal aliens were working in the grape fields at Gallo. Union staff
began calling the United States Border Patrol office in Fresno to report
the locatiom (both work place and home address) of illegals who were being
used to break the strike at Gallo.

On September 20, the US Border Patrol checked the E & J Gallo Winery Campany
and found no illegal aliens working at its 5,000 acre Livingston vinevard,
An article in Fresno Bee, October 2, 1974 quoted Herb Walsh, deputv chief
patrol agent for the Northern Califernia area, as saving:

"We went in and checked like we would at any other place,” said

Walsh, who personally led the check. "We talked to the people

and asked them to produce a type of identification.”

None of the 420 grape pickers interviewed were illegal aliens,

Walsh added.
Within two days of the raid, both the Washington, D.C. office of the U.S.
Immigration and Naturalization Service and Gallo Wineries put out news
releases giving Gallo "a complete, clean bill of health this week" as
regards the hiring of illegal aliens. ({(quote from the Gallo press release).
On the morming of the raid, September 20, union organizers called union
headquarters to report that Gallo's work force had dropped from its normal
strength of 480 to a low of 250 that morning. The next day, Saturday, the

work count dropped to 204. But on Monday, September 23, the work force

was back up to 480,



That Monday night, the same two illegal aliens who had brought informatise
to union staff members sarlier im the week, came by the office te report
that Galle foremen had checked the papers of the entire work force the
day before the Border Patrol raid and told everyone who was working

illegally to leave the fields.

For further details on the Border Patrol raid, see the declarations on
the following pages. These declarations were taken by the legal staff
of the Livingston, California United Farm Worker field office.

Names have been removed from two of the declaratioms to protect the

identities of the declarants.
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I, (Name withheld) » residing at _ (Address withheld) o

Livingston, California do hersby deéclare:

I have been employed by the E & J Gallo Company in Livingston since |
January, 1974. My present home is on property which belongs te Gallo.
On Thursday, September 19, 1974, 1 was working on Jose Gonzalez's crew,
which is crew #1. Jose Gonzalez is the supervisor. We were working on
what is called the Chester Ranch. There were about 40 tractors on the
crew I was on. In the morning, about 9:00 A.M., 1 noticed Alberto
Cardenas going around to all the tractors in my crew., When he came to
our tractor, he spoke to the four people who worked on my tractor. He
said tomorrow you have to bring your green cards if you have one, because
the immigration is coming. If vew don't have one, don't come to work,
because they are going to check everybody. I also saw Alberto go to one

crew and speak, and one of the persons took off running. [ later heard

that person got laid off.
The next day, on the twentieth, I did not go to work because [ don't

have any papers either, Nobodv else that works on my gondo.a went either

because they also dnq't have any pepers. On Friday, about twenty people
who live in the same camp I live in did not go to work either. I

I also have some friemds who work on crew #2, which is supervised
by Joe Morin. They told me that they saw Joe Morin hide some women who
were illegal when he got the word that the immigration had arrived. They
said that he hid them down by the river.

On Saturday, the 21st of September, I went to get my check. Frank
Meza was there in Gallo's office giving out the checks. I was surprised
because usually Jerry Russell gives out the checks because he is the
secretary. Frank Meza is the contractor vho gives us the jobs. He was

asking everybody for work cards and green cards, If you didn't have a
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green card, he would take back your work I.D, card, and you would be iazid

off, When I got to Meza, he asked me for my green card. I told him I had

lost my wallet, and that I'm from Texas, so he gave me my check, and he ‘
] |
didn't take my I.D. number. S¢ I returned to work on Monday, even though |
f

I don't have any legal papars.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and

correct.

Executed at Livingston, California on tnis l1st day of October, 1974.

|
(MName withhald to protect the declarznt) 1
J

DECLARATION OF TRANSLATOR }
I, Agnes Roge, am fluent ia tha Spanish and English languages. I read

an accurate translation of the above declaration to (Name withheld)

in Spanish, and he declared it to be true.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and

|
i
|
|
|
|
correct. Executed at Merced, California on this 1st day of October. ]97ﬁ.
f
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I, Clements Castille, residing at 1346 W. 11lth Ste. in Merced do hereby declarc:
I have been employed by the E. J. Gallo Co, in Livingston as a field

vorker for about three weeks. I work on a crew of about 200 pickers. There
are apprnximataly 50 trautors with 4 people uorking on each trnetor picking
winn grapes for the‘gondolas. Since I have been working on this crew and
partlonlarly on last Thursday and Friday, September 19th and 20th, there have
beon no Immigration Officers checking my crew for papers. I was at work both

of these days, and I would know if the people on my crew had been checked,

Ore of the plckers on my tractor is an illegal alien., He told me that

'.he'han been arrested befere and'tufnad over to the Immigratien and another

tine ervested by the Border Patrol. He said it took him some time to return
to Gallo to werk again.

On my whole orew of EOD-ﬁnrk0ws, there are at least 20 paopin who I know
den't have papers, tut I believe that roughly 100 of the entire crew are illegal
even though I have not spokeu to e;ch of them. Of the ones that I know are
illegals 1t is because I have known them »t work and in my community. I have

teken them to work sometimes, and. I have found out which ones have papers and

y widch omes are afraid of being picked uﬁo Even some of my neighbors are illegal

and werk for Gallo.

There are plenty of paupln working fo# Gallo this year. Many of them are
illegels, but all of Gallo s workers like the high pay which Gallo has paid
sinco Chavez started organizing here, Many residents that I know have tried

to work fer Gallo, but since theitr are so many illigals:uurking there, they

have nct been able to work there.
Waen I came to work at Gallo, they asked 4f I had papers, but I knew that

uontinnid._



0 @ ~2 O 1 S D B e

o T — T R R S WSy

a8
a7
a8

an@nn

| many people have éattm work without them. They may have to pay extra for this,
~but I den't knew who they pay.

I declare under penalty of perjury that. the forsgoing is true and correct.
Exacuted at Merced, California on this 25th day of September, 1974,

DECLARLTION OF TRANSLATOR

I, Agnes Rose, am fluent in the Spanish and English languages. I read an

accurste translation of the above declaration to Clemente Castille in Spanish
‘and he declared it to be true.

I declare under penaliy of perjury that the foregoing is true and ‘correct,
Executed at Merced; California on this 25th day of September, 1974,

o eAs LA b
gnes’ Hose
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I residing at | s Ldviﬁgston, California
do hersby dqelarez

Next to my house there is a barrack where aboul twenty people live. The
barrack %long with the house I live in belongs to the Arakellan Vineyards.
A1l of the twenty men-are living in the United States illegally. Some
sleep outside, and tﬁay don't ge out very often except to go to work. Nine
of those workers work for E & J Gallo £hay plek wine grapes.

At 13777 Westside Boulevard, there live abcut 35 illepal aliens in a white
houses This property also belongs to Arakelian. I once talked to Aurelioc
Garibay; one of the illegals thére. He complained that his rommmates who
worked for Gallo were not eble to get him a job there. Galle pays more
than Arakelian because of the strike.

Fifteen or twenty illégal aliens live a2t 15492 Vinewood. Guadalupe Arroyo
Vega is the wife of.one'of those workers, and she told me.ﬂhat all of the
nen 1living there piek grapes for Gallo, This property alsoc beongs to
Arakelian.

Arakelian has a migrant.cdmp at 12742 We River Road. At this camp there
are about 40 undocumented workers living in small houses. Many of these
vorkers also work for Gallo. I know this 5acause I have seen them taken
to work at Gallo's vineyards.

Some of these illegals who work for Galle have false greencarde. These
cards would not get them past the Border Patrel, but they telp the %o

zet jobs at Gallo. BSome of the other illegals got jobs at Gallo without
groencards. Thay had worked there last yesr during the blg strike, and
gince they did not walk ocut last year, Gallc was willing to rehire thenm
this year.

About two weeks azgo, the Border Patrol relded the Arakellan Camp on Rlver

Roads I was told by & friend of mine who had been at the camp the night
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before the raid that that night Abundio Aguilar, a Livingston Police officer,
had come to talk to some people from hls hometown in Mexico, That night they

all left and steyed at the Vinewood house which was not raided. When the Eorder
Patrol came they arrested some of the illegals, but they didn't get any of
those frem he officer's hometown.

X declare'undar penalty of perjury that the foregolng is true and correct.

Executed on this 25th day of September, 1974 at Livingston, California.

Declaration of Translator

I, Agnes Rose, am fluent in the English and Spanish languages. I read an
accurate translation of the above declaration to Guermina Hernandez in
Spanish and she declared it to be true.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and corrsct.

Executed at Livingston, Califormia on this 25th day of Spptember, 1974,

Aﬁas Rose
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I
I, Jose M. Sanchez, do declare that: I live at 1635 C. Street, Livingstoa
California. I am legally in this country and have been for eleven yea;'w
I have worked for two years now for a grape grower named Robert Vieker }

i

|

at 6672 N. Hunter Road in Livingston. I worked for him pruning grapes r
. ] b

in the 1972 and 1973 season. In 1972 I was paid $1.80 per hour for my

g 1

|
1
i

work, and in 1973 I received $2.20 per hour for my work. Both years that

I worked there about half of the people employed there were illegals. I

I

know they were illegals becauée‘in conversatiﬁns we had, they mentioned E

that they didn't have any papers. This year Qhen_I went again to ask'forl}
a job, the rancher saﬁd he didn'<t have any work. I know thatjilleéals i:
are working on that ranch now. About a month ago the immigration picked i%
up one of the illegals named Juan who worked with me on this ranch. This}i
|

past Sunday, I saw Juan uptown agzain, and yesterday a friend of both of

ours told me that Juan is back working for the same rancher where I
I declare, under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and

Executed at Livingston, California on the 20 _day of September, 197h.

n_,;q*;E:lJ2EEﬂJﬁZEZﬂE,AZlﬁhzﬂé?%%j____- ' i
Joge M. Sanchez : L

1, Agnes, Rose, hereby declare that:

I am fluent in hotﬁ Spanish and English. I read the above to the
declafanf and he understdod and affirmed the contents thereof before
sighning.

Executed a*% Livingston, Califernia on the jgﬁL_day of September, 1974

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and

correct,

Sl ﬁyﬂmgﬁi-fdé%:%ﬁmi

Agnes Rose T
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I, Rejeldo Villarreal, residing at 1345 10th Street, Merced, California,
do harnby declares |

During the first part of Septeaber, 1974, my naxt door nelighbor, whe is
an illegal allem, a.nd I went to the B & J Galle Ranch to ask for employment.
Another frlend of mine who fumiw’a social gecurity also went, All t_h'ral of
us filled ocut spplications, and my friend who receives social security got a
Job right eway, because he had worked there last year duﬁng ‘the sh‘ike. ﬁy
friend who is an illegal ‘nnd X ;atro told to come backe The next'day we both
went back, btuit still nething, The third day I went back ‘alonc, and was told
that Gallo had emough workers, amd (et they weuldn't hire anymere th'is-ym.
I lef't my telephone number for them 15 oall on my application in case they
needed anyonse

Gallo: 53111 has not called ﬁm, i1l my next doer neighber who is an
11legel got a job . threw days ago. |

I do not think it is fair that someone who has no legal papers to be

in this country should be given a job hafore me when I have to pay taxes in

this countryy and I have a wife and four schocl children to support.
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregeing is truc and correct, -
Executed at Merced, California on this 25th day of September, 1971&'4

DECLARATION OF TRANSLATOR _
I, Agnes Rose, am fluent in the Spanish and English language. I read an
accurate translation of the sbove declaration to Rojelio Villarreal in Spanish
and he declared it to be true. | |
I deolara undsr pemalty of pnr;}ury that the foregoing is tma and correct. |
Executed at Merced, Califormia on this 25th day of Beptem‘bar, 1974,




REPORT ON ILLEGAL ALIEN FARM LABOR - ARIZONA
SPECIAL REPORT ON THE ARROWHEAD RANCH OF GLENDALE, ARIZONA

PREPARED BY THE LEGAL STAFF OF THE PHOINEX UNITED FARM WORKERS' OFFICE

Arrowhead Ranches is a partnership owned by Robert Goldwater and the
four Martori brothers. This partnership is one of the incorporators of
GOLDMAR, INC., an Arizona Corporation, whizh is a large development and
investment company now operating the ranch and involved in many large
real estate deals in Arizona. Its 1972 assets were listed at 516,286,000,
The Arrowhead Ranch is managed by Art Martori and produces grapes, lettuce
and citrus.

1972

As early as the fall of 1971 and spring of 1972 workers reported up
to 200 illegals working in the citrus at Arrowhead. This was verified
by union organizer Lupe Sanchez and others who visited with these men in
the orange groves on the ranch where they lived. The illegals were living
in cardboard boxes and under tarps in the ecitrus groves and frequently
would eat only citrus during the times when work was slow., TV crews and
reporters were taken to the scene and there were numerous reports at the
time.

Local workers filed a $33 million lawsuit against the ranch in March
of 1972 since many of them had been displaced by the illegals and others
were forced to work for the 80-90 ccnts an hour the illegals would accept.
Subpoened records of the Border Patrol showed repeated raids at the ranch;
raids that always produced illegals. (1970 - 28 raids, 103 apprehensions;
1971 - 37 raids, 186 apprehensions). The Border Patrol agents admitted
at the time of that lawsuit that they were only apprehending a small
percentage of the illegals since they would all scatter when the patrol
appeared.

1973

During the spring and summer of 1973, illegals were used to break the
Union's strike in the grapes at Arrowhead Ranch. During the hearing on a
preliminary injunction extensive testimony on illegals was admitted. Workers
testified that they had worked in crews with between 40-50 illegals in each.
Picketers observed every morning dozens of illegals cross f{rom the orange
groves to the grape fields, some were transported in the back of the foreman's
pick-ups. Celia Horton, one of the strikers, testified that she attended a
meeting at the Arrowhead labor camp in May, 1973 where there were at least
100 illegals. Ranch foreman Frank Sanchez admitted to her at the time that
he was aware they were all illegals but they "had it better off here than in
Mexico."

Frank Sanchez is the regular supervisor of the illegal crews. His wife
supplies food for most of the illegale which is taken to them in the field.
For this they are charged up to $24 2 week. For many of the others Sanchez
will go buy groceries for them and then deduct some amount from their checks,
usually much higher than any reasonable cost for the food. The illegals
live either in the citrus groves on the ranch or in old barracks near
Sanchez' home. Illegals who recently left the ranch told us that Sanchez and



SPECIAL REPORT ON THZ ARROWHEAD RANCH OF GLENDALE, ARIZONA CONTINUED

another foreman Mesa, warn the men to be on the lookout
for the Border Fatrol and Sanchez and Mesa would warn them of the patrol's
coming by honking pick-up horns or yelling to the workers.

1974

During the early weeks of the strike this year, once again large numbers
of illegzls have been found on the Arrowhead Ranch, Strikers have gone
into the groves to speak with the men. During the first week of the strike
on April 24, 1974, five illegals left the ranch and spoke very freely about
their expariences,

fevaral of the illegals walked to Phoenix all the way from the Mexican
border, a three day trip, without food or water, other than what they found
along the way. The illegals said that Arrowhead also pays $80 per worker
to several contractors who drive workers from a pick up point in Case Grande
to the ranch. When the illegals arrive at Arrowhead, they are given a number
and referred to by that number during their stay. Should a contractor from
California or another state need workers, they are arbitrarily assigned with-
out any choice on the part of the workers, One of the illegals described
being called to a meeting by their foreman and being informed that about
twenty of the workers were needed in California. The foreman proceeded to
choose workers at random regardless of whether they desired to go.

Althovgh the illegals worked approximately 10 hours a day, six days a
week, the wages averaged between $30 and $60 a week, in obvious violation
of the minimum wage laws. Several of the men reported that social security
deductions had been taken from their checks even though'they did not have
social security numbers.

On August 25, 1974, The Arizonma Repulic, a Phoenix newspaper, published an
article entitled "Visdens of fortune lure illegal aliens to state." Author
Tom Kuln estimated that no fewer than 50,000 illegal aliens are employed
by Arizeona industries and agriculture, a figure that exceeds the number of
Avizonsns curreantly out of work.
Aunt aisd stated that one of the biggest employers in the area (of illegal
aliens) is the Arrewhead Ranch of Glendale. It is estimated that during the
winter, there will be as many as 300 to 400 illegal aliens living at the Ranch
in tLo citrus groves.

k ok ok ok kok ok ok R kR k ok ook ok R

The declarations following this report refer to the use of illegal aliens
at both Arrowhead and other struck ranches in the Phoenix area.



AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Maricopa

DEMETRIO DIAZ, being first duly sworn deposes and says:

a.)
b.)

B

d.)

e.)

£e.)

g.)

h.)

14)

s

k.)

That my family and [ live in Guameo Chico, Michuacan, Mexico.

That a man named "Alberto" came to our house and asked my family
and me if I wanted to work in the United States, that he had work
lined up for us working in the oranges for at least $20 a day,
and that he would get us across the U.S. border and that we would
walk for two days to reach the Ranch, and that he would charge me
$100.

That on the 20th of December, 1973, 21 of us traveled with "Alberto"
to Altar, Sonora, Mexico by bus; that most of us didn't even have
blankets because "Alberto™ had told us that they wouldn't be needed;
that when we arrived in Altar, we spent the night outside with only
a little fire to keep us warm while "Alberto" sglept inside a house.

That at 2 AM. we rode to the Border in two pick~up trucks, where
we were dropped off, we jumped over the fence amd then followed
"Alberto" through the desert for four days and nighte, sleeping
at the most four hours a night and at times walking up to three
hours bent over so that the border patrol wouldn't find us.

That the food we had brought last us three days, after which we killed
a desert pig to eat, because the last day and a half of the walk, we
had no food to eat.

That one young short boy hurt his leg, that his leg was so swollen
that the boy couldn’t walk, that "Alberto'" gave him some marijuana
to make the bov walk, that the boy couldn't get up, that "Albarto"
wouldn't let us carry him, saying "no, leave him." And that the
boy was left in the desert with one pgallen of water and unable to
walk, an entire night's walk from the US border.

That on the path of the desert were many human skeletons and loose
bones alongside empty wvater cans.

That 20 of us arrived in Casa Grande, ARizona with "Alberto" at a
house where he telephoned a foreman named "Meza" to come and get us,
that "Meza" took us to an orange orchard te sleep without having
eaten, and that the next morning '""Meza" took us to work picking
oranges, also without having eaten,

That the orchard he took us to belonged to Martori's, and in that
orchard I stayed to live in for the next five months.

That the first afterncon after work, I went to eat with by brother,
but that most of my comrades didn't eat any food that day, that they
had no money, and that they didn't eat until the evening of the second
day of work. '

That we were taken to work by Meza everyday, that we picked oranges,
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lemons, grapefruit, and mandaring, that we worked from sunm to gun,
six days a week, that I never missed a day of work in the five nonths
T stayed with "Meza" at Marteri's.,

That we were paid every Saturday by check, that my check’s ncane
betwean 30 (nothing) te 540 per week.

Thac ven? of us had a Social Security aumber, but that Scoial
Szpeurity was iakon out of the checks: i.e, One week 1 was to have
earned §30, but theres was 510 deducted for Social Security.

That che food we ate was brought to us by "Meza", that he took our
orders lu the aftarnocon and them hought us the food and took it out
to ug in tlhe orchard.

That at the end of the week, money was taken out of our checks for

the food rhat "Meza" had brought for us, that he never showed us how
much money had heen spent on our food, but that teo wmuch money was
taken from Lur checks for the food that was brought to us, ie.: for

2 bep of flour, two dozen egga, salt, 3 cang of beans, we were charged
vp to §20, which was taken out of our checks.

That we slept in a lewon orchard of Martori's from December to April,
and made our beds of cardboard and orange crateg, that there were no
bathrooms in the orchards, aand that we cooked osut food on firas in the
orcharda.

That there was & guard all the time to make sura that no one left the
orchard.

That the guard called "Meza" one night when my brother left the orchard
to go to 2 dance, sad that the Border Patrol picked up my brother hefors
he arrived at the dance, and sent him back to Mexico.

That "Meza" often said that if we left the orchard, he would call the
Border Patrol.

That "Meza" ofter said, "The Border Patrol are my friends, and if
there is ever a report, the Border Patrol calls me, and I tell my
workers to hide "

That the DBovder Patreol never sentered a field where 1 was working to
check the papers, that one day the Border Patrol arrived where I was
working, zud a mun named "Pedro" whom they call the “Hippie'", went out
to talk to the officers and 1 saw Pedro give them something from his
pocket, then the officers went away.

That "Alberzo" and two other men named "El Tio" and "Pedro"” (not the
"Hippie") brought 2 new group of illegals every two weeks.

That it iz koown among the workers 1 livedwith in the orchards that
"Alberto had been working for Mezs as a tractor driver, and then had
switched jobs to bring illegals from Mexico to work at Martori's.

And that I nake this affidavit of my own personal knowledge.
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AFFIDAV I T

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Maricapa

FILIMON VILLALPANDO AYALA, being first duly sworn deposes and says:

)

b.)

)

d.)

e.)

S

g.)

h.)

1.0

i)

k.)

That 1 live with my family in Jeruco, Michuacan, Mexico.

That in March of 1974, a man called "El Tio" arrived at our house
and promised me a good wage if I would go with him to the United
States to work in the fields, that he would charge me $80 to show
me the way, and get me a job.

That on March 20th, I left my family and followed "El Tio" along with
27 other men, that we rode to the border of the United States, jumned
the fence, and followed "El Tio" through the desert of Arizona, and on
the 26th of March, arrived at Case Grandes, Arizona, from where "El
Tio" had a man drive us ‘to Martori's camp.

At Martori's, some of us stayed in the citrus orchards, and some of
us stayed in the small houses of the camp, that 1 stayed most of the
time in the attic of the camp houses to sleep, but at times I would
join the majority of the illegal workers in the orchards to saleep
and cook our meals.

That there were over one hundred illegal aliens working where I was
in the citrus orchards of Martori.

That the foreman for whom T worked is named Pancho Sanchez.

That the only way to get food was to ask the foreman to go buy what
we needed, that Pedro Sanchez or a man called Santos would buy our
food, and that at the end of the week, thev would take out of our
checks the money they had spent on our food, hut they usually charged
us 55 or more for each time they went to buv us food.

That we worked from about 6AM to 5 or 6PM, for six days a week.

That the most we ever made in a day was $10.00, that the checks T
received while working at Martori's ranged from $34 to $61.

That the Border Patrol never bothered us in the orchards where we
worked, that while T was working I never saw an officer of the Border
Patrol.

That Pancho Sanchez would tell us when the Border Patrol was going to
arrive, and he would tell us to "run, hide, scatter" so that we had a
better chance of evading getting caught, but that while we were hiding,
T never heard the Border Patrol enter the field.

7

o

“H ¥
Filimon Villalpando Ayala



AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Maricopa

JUAN OJEDA, of 2709 West Garfield, Phoenix, Arizona, being first duly
sworn, deposes and says:

a.) That on May 23, 1974, I went along with four other men to visit
the Arrowhead Orange fields that are situated on the right and left
hand sidegpf 59th Avenue, one half mile North of Beardsly in Maricopa
County, Arizona.

b.) That there are at least 40 illegal aliens cooking their meals, and
sleeping in these orange fields.

c.) That the illegal aliens work in these fields at this time, picking
the oranges at the rates of $1.35 an hour, 8 hours a day, six days
a weel.

d.) That these orange orchards have no bathrooms, no toilets and no
washing facilities.

e.) That there is a foreman named "Nicolas" who takes some of these
illegals that sleep in thie orchard, to different orange orchards
and grape fields to work; and the vehicle he uses is a2 green '67
Dodge pick-up, with license plates DN8536,

f.) That the illegals who live in this orchard have no transportation
of their own, and have te wait for somecne to bring foed to them.

g.) That I called the Border Patrol on the afternoon of May 23rd, 1974
at approximately 4:20 P.M. to report the location of these same
illegal aliens.

h.) That on the 24th of May, 1974, I went to check the same orchard at
11:00 A.M. and the Border Patrol had not yet arrived.

i.) That on the 25th of May, 1974, I returned to the same orchard in the
late morning, and the Border Patrol had not yet arrived.

j+) And that I make this statement of my own personal knowledge.

; '
by 2
¢4€i§fﬁ?é;%E??Jé£;;Z§g§§ézﬁ§;2_rﬂ
JUAN OJE

F. i




SPECIAL STRIKE REPORT: SAN LUIS, ARIZONA

On August 27, 1974, 200 workers walked off their jobs in the lemon orchards
of San Luis, A:izona to form a United Farm Worker picket line. As of October
4, that picket line had grown to a strength of 2000 workers.

By the second week of the strike, it was clear that the most serious
problem the striker's faced was an increase in the number of illegal aliens
coming across the border to work in the lemon orchards. San Luis, Arizona
is separated from San Luis, Mexico by a chain link fence. Illegala who
cross the border only have to go some 220 yards to arrive in the commercial
center of San Luis, Arizona and los% themselves in the crowd. On September

12,La Voz de la Frontera, a Mexican newspaper, ran an article entitled "Hole

in the International Border " written by reporter Francisco Flores. The article
dealt specifically with the San Luis strike area:

San Luis, Mexico - Do the Northamerican Border Patrol Agents really close
their eyes to illegal immigrants? This is an important question at this
time in this border area near Yuma, Arizona. In the Yuma area, members
of Cesar Chavez' Union are presently on strike against the citrus growers. .
An immigration official, who did not reveal his name, was asked the
above question. His laconic response was, '"We aren't interested in
problems between strikers and growers. We simply try to catch illegals
and return them to their country."
Moments before this interview, photographer Alfredo L8pez had taken
a number of pictures of some yorng people passing through a hole in the
fence of the International Border. The hole is about a meter and a half
high and 30 centimeters wide. 7he hole is situated in front of the Water
Station in this city, which has been functioning some two years. Nevertheless,
with the strikes now going on in Yuma against citrus growers and the
contracting of illegals to break the strikes znd salvage the harvest,
traffic of undocumented workers through this hole has increased.

Carlos Cortez has worked for the irrigation district in San Luis for
fourteen years. His job is directly in front of "The Hole" and he told
La Voz that every day at least 200 people pass through the fence.

When the strikers realized the extent of the damage caused by this influx

of illegal aliens, they began contacting the Border Patrol on a daily basis,

reporting to them the location of these illegals and asking them to enforce



Immigration law by deporting the illegals back to Mexico. Finding the
Border Patrol either unwilling or unable to do its job (see declarationms
following), the strikers _ook action on their own. During the second week
of the strike, 350 workers organized themselves into a 24 hour a day
border patrol. Each night, thi# farmworkar patrol encountered on an
average of eighty undocumented aliens attempting to cross the border into
the strike area. By explaining the strike situation, the farmworkers were
able to turn many of the illegals hack.

Ag a result of the effectiveness of this action as far, the farmworkers
are expanding their patrol. On Sunday, October 6, some 2000 people will
position themselves along a 125 mile area of the border. Tents, equipped
with communication equipment, will be stationed every 20 miles and cars
will patrol the area 2@ hours daily. Thus, the hole in the fence and
many others like it, will be effectively blocked for the duratiom of the
strike or until such time as there is evidenc; that the United States

Border Patrol is capable of doing its job well.
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Yuma

EDUARDO GARCIA, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

On the evening of September 17, 1974 at approximately 10:00P.M.

1 observed a truck in San Luis, Sonora, Mexico with about forty people in the
truck. This truck was parked near the border about two miles from the border
check point, at a point where there is no fence at the border.

1 was standing on the United S5States side of the border with some other
men watching this truck.

it is clear to me that these forty men were trying to enter the United
States illegally because the men left the truck and began to walk across the
border at this point rather than at the official border crossing. When they
saw me and the others they immediately ran back to the Mexican side.

One of the men with me told me that the driver of the truck was Pablo
Cobarruvia, a foreman for the Curtis, Woodman and Roach Company.

At his house in San Luis, Sonora there are many men living for whom he
provides housing and food. I helieve this is where the men staying awaiting
a chance to cross the border illegally,

Other workers with whom I have spoken tell me that Pablo Cobarruvia works
every year at the C.W. and R. Company as a supervisor and that his crews of

citrus workers are always largely illegal aliens,

The above was translated into English for me. It was read to me in Spanist

and I know its contents to be true.’

EDUARDO GARCIA

-

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ML this 20th_ day of September, 1974.

BRUCE MEYERSON
Notary Public

|
|




AFFIDAVIT

MANUEL CANCHOLA, JUAN BRAVO and ROBERT TORREZ, being first duly sworn,

depose and say:

That we worked for the SUNCO Citrus Company from September 14 through the |
18th, 1974, picking lemons,

The foreman in charge of our crew was Raul Zalgado.

In this crew headed by Raul Zalgado there were fifteen men who were
illegal aliens. These illegals lived and slept in the fields of the SUNCO
Company. Raul Zalgado knew that these men were all illegals and even pro-
vided food for them in the orchard,

The Company knew that the men were illegal aliens because one of the
foremen picked them up at the railroad yard to where they had hitched a
ride,

Even though the Company is claiming they will pay $18 per bin for lemons
these men were paid only 5195 per bin,

The above was translated into Fnglish for me. It had been read to me

in Spanish, 1 understand its contents, and know them to be true.

MANUEL CANCHOLA

JUAN BRAVO

ROBERT TORREZ

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE MI this __19th day of September, 1974,

BRUCE MEYERSON
Notary Public
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Yuma

JOSE LARA, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

On or about September 6th at approximately 10 A.M. I along with twenty
other persons were picketing at a field owned by the Yuma Citrus Company
at Avenue 5E between 14th and 15th Avenues.

While we were picketing there we saw several illegal aliens picking
lemons in that field.

We than told a deputy sheriff that was present that there were many
illegals in the field and asked him to go check it. The deputy‘'s name was
Dingley. He went into the field and returned a few minutes later and told
us that there were several illegals there. He said that there were too
many for him to apprehend so he said he would call the border patrol.

We waited for the border patrol for about an hour. When they did not
come we again asked the sheriff and he told us he never called them. We
then sent some of the picketers to call them.

About 45 minutes later the border patrol arrived and we observed them
take six men from the orchard. One of the border patrol officers then
told us that he thought about 20-25 others had run away when they saw the

agents coming.

JOSE LARA

SUBCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME this 19th day of September, 1974,

BRUCE MEYER SON

Notary Public
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Yuma

THOMAS LUNA, being first duly sworn, upon his oath deposes and says:

That he resides in San Luis, Arizona, and has been employed by various
Yuma lemon growers for the last 10 vears and that he makes this affidavit
of his own personal knowledpge.

That he is currently on strike with hundreds of other workers seeking
collective bargaining agreements with Yuma area lemon growers:

That many of these growers are employing illegal aliens to hreak the
strike and that.one of these growers is Spencer & Spencer,Citrus Development
Company ;

That Spencer and Spencer Citrus Development Company is currently employ-
ing approximately 60 to 80 illegal aliens in its packing sheds in Yuma
County;

That it is very difficult to find the illegals when the growers know
you are coming to look for them since they will move the crews of illegals
from field to field;

That the foregoing has been translated for him into Spanish and he knows

the contents thereof to be true.

THOMAS LUNA

SUBSCRIBED TO AND SWORN before me this 19¢th  day of September, 1974,

BRUCE MEYERSON
Notary Public
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF ARIZONA
County of Yuma

JAIME LOMELIL RUANA, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

On or about Wednesday, September 11, 1974 | was at the office of the
United Farm Workers in San Luis, Arizona. At this time a woman worker from
the Spencer and Spencer Company came to me and renorted about the use of
illegal aliens at this company. This woman was not herself a member of the
Union but several of her relatives whom [ have known for many years are
members,

This woman told me that at the packing shed where she worked the
Spencer and Spencer Company was employing about seven or eight illegal
aliens, This packing shed is located in the city of Yuma and is used to
pack citrus fruit,

When 1 was told this information I reported it to the lUnited States
border patrol office in Yuma. At this time 1 am not entirely sure what
dction the border patrol took in regard to this matter, However, a
discussion with one of this woman's relatives a week later indicated that
no one from the border patrol had gone to this packing shed and the illepal

aliens were still working there.

JAIME RUANO

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ML THIS __ 19th  day of September, 1974.

"~ "BRUCE MEYERSON
Notary Public




